CITY OF EVANSTON, ILLINOIS
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Monday, January 26, 2009
8:30 P.M.

ORDER OF BUSINESS
(I)

Roll Call – Alderman Jean-Baptiste

(II)

Mayor Public Announcements

(III)

City Manager Public Announcements

(IV)

Environment Board Awards Presentation

(V)

Police Department Awards

(VI)

Communications: City Clerk

(VII) Citizen Comment
The Council, as part of the agenda, shall at the commencement of each regular Council meeting, provide a period
for citizen comment. Interested persons shall sign their name, address and state the topic to be addressed on a
posted list. If there are five or less speakers a period not to exceed fifteen minutes shall be provided. If there are
more than five speakers a period not to exceed forty-five minutes shall be provided for all comment, and no
individual shall speak longer than three minutes. The Mayor will allocate time among the speakers to ensure that
citizen comment does not exceed forty-five minutes. The business of the City Council shall commence no later
than forty-five minutes after the beginning of Citizen Comment. Aldermen do not respond during Citizen
Comment. (Council Rule 6)

(VIII) Consent Agenda:
(IX)

Alderman Moran

Report of the Standing Committees
Administration & Public Works
Planning & Development
Human Services

-

Alderman Wollin
Alderman Moran
Alderman Holmes

(X)

Call of the Wards
(Aldermen shall be called upon by the Mayor to announce or provide information about any
Ward or City matter which an Alderman desires to bring before the Council.)
{Council Rule 2.1(10)}

(XI)

Executive Session

(XII) Adjournment
NOTE:

Administration and Public Works Committee held at 5:30 p.m.
Planning and Development Committee held at 6:30 p.m.
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CONSENT AGENDA
(M1)* Approval of Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of January 12, 2009

ADMINISTRATION & PUBLIC WORKS
(A1)* City of Evanston Payroll through

01/18/09

$2,642,032.58

(A2)* City of Evanston Bills through

01/27/09

$3,450,305.83

(A3)* Resolution 5-R-09 2009 Motor Fuel Tax Street Resurfacing Program
Consideration of proposed resolution 5-R-09 by which the City Council would
appropriate $1,250,000 of Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Funds for resurfacing attached
list of streets.
For Action
(A4)* Ordinance 6-O-09 Amending Title 7, Chapter 4, Section 3, of the City Code by
Adding a “Pavement Degradation Fee”
Consideration of proposed ordinance 6-O-09 amending Title 7, Chapter 4, Section
3 of the City Code “Restoration of Surface after Excavation” by adding a pavement
degradation fee.
For Introduction
(A5)* Ordinance 8-O-09 Decrease in Number of Class B Liquor Licenses – Amending
Section 3-5-6 (B) of the City Code
Consideration of proposed ordinance 8-O-09 amending Section 3-5-6 (B) of the City
Code to decrease the number of Class B liquor licenses from 17 to 16 due to the
expiration of the liquor license of Omaggio, LLC, dba Omaggio (1639 Orrington
Avenue, Evanston, IL ).
For Introduction
(A6)* Recommendation for Phase 2 Engineering Services for the Pedestrian/Bicycle Path
System Between Lee and Clark Street Beaches (RFQ 07-51)
Approval of professional services contract in the amount of $143,706 from EDAW
Inc./CTE Joint Venture (303 E. Wacker Dr., Suite 600, Chicago, IL) for Phase 2
Engineering Services for the pedestrian/bicycle path system between Lee and Clark
Street Beaches. Funding provided by the City of Evanston Capital Improvement
Program in the amount of $55,706.00 and the Illinois Transportation Enhancement
Program (ITEP) in the amount of $88,000.00. This item was held in City Council on
January 12, 2009.
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(A7)* Resolution 4-R-09 Authorizing the Interim City Manager to sign a Local Agency
Agreement for Federal Participation with the Illinois Department of
Transportation (IDOT) for the Evanston Lakefront Corridor Reconstruction
Project (pedestrian/bicycle path system between Lee and Clark Street Beaches).
Consideration of proposed Resolution 4-R-09 authorizing the Interim City Manager to
sign a Local Agency Agreement for Federal Participation with the Illinois Department
of Transportation for the Evanston Lakefront Corridor Reconstruction Project
(pedestrian/bicycle path system between Lee and Clark Street Beaches). This item was
held in City Council on January 12, 2009.
For Action

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
(P1)* Consideration of Draft Downtown Plan - Recommendation for Approval from Plan
Commission
Plan Commission recommendation to approve the Draft Downtown Plan as revised
by the Plan Commission.
For Action
(P2)* Consideration of Recommendation to Provide Marketing Assistance and Sales
Incentives for Three Affordable Housing Providers (Reba Place Development
Corporation, Evanston Community Development Association, and Citizens’
Lighthouse Community Land Trust), Using Federal HOME Funds Supplied by
HUD
Request approval of $30,517 in HOME funds for marketing activities and sales
incentives to help three affordable ownership developments complete sales by June
30, 2009. The funding consists of $5,517 for marketing and up to $25,000 for
For Action
broker incentives.
(P3)* Consideration of Request for a 2-Year Retroactive Extension for the 1560 Oak
Street Approved Special Use (Museum of Time and Glass), Ordinance 36-O-07
Consideration of a request for a 2-year retroactive time extension for the 1560 Oak
Street Special Use, received from the applicant after the formal one-year expiration
date of the Special Use, May 1, 2008. The requested extension would be until May
For Action
1, 2010.
(P4)* Consideration of Request for 1813-1819 Hovland Court Plat of Subdivision
Consideration of a proposed plat of subdivision for the property at 1813-1819
Hovland Court.
For Action
(P5)* Ordinance 4-O-09, Granting A Special Use for a Convenience Store at 812 Davis
Street in the D3 Downtown Core Development District
Consideration of a ZBA recommendation of approval with conditions for a convenience
Store at 812 Davis St. in the D3 Downtown Core Development District.
For Introduction
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(P6)* Ordinance 127-O-08 Amending the Text of the Zoning Ordinance by Adding
Section 6-15-15, “oWE West Evanston Overlay District” and Section 6-15-16,
“WE1 West Evanston Transitional District”
Consideration of a Plan Commission recommendation for approval of text
amendments to the Zoning Ordinance to add a new zoning district “WE1 – West
Evanston Transitional District” and to add a new overlay district “oWE – West
Evanston Overlay District” to Chapter 15 - Special Purpose and Overlay Districts.
Held in Committee on November 24, 2008 and December 8, 2008.
For Action
(P7)* Ordinance 128-O-08 Amending the Zoning Map to Re-Zone Certain Properties
Pursuant to the West Evanston Physical Planning and Urban Infill Design Master
Plan
Consideration of a Plan Commission recommendation for approval of map
amendments to change the base zoning district designations for several properties
within the West Evanston Plan area as specified in the West Evanston Plan Zoning
Implementation document, Base Zoning District Changes map and to designate
properties currently within the West Evanston Plan area to be included in the oWE
West Evanston Overlay District as specified in the West Evanston Plan Zoning
Implementation document, West Evanston Zoning Overlay map. Held in
Committee on November 24, 2008 and December 8, 2008.
For Action
(P8)* Ordinance 7-O-09 Former Kendall College Site – Ordinance Removing Conditions
on Extension of Planned Development
Consideration of a request from Smithfield Properties XXXII, LLC, property
owner and applicant, to grant amendments to the planned development (85-O-06)
to be constructed on the former site of Kendall College, located between Orrington
Avenue, Colfax Street, Sherman Avenue, and Lincoln Street. The approval of the
amendments would remove certain conditions.
For Action
(P9)* Ordinance 134-O-08 Amending Section 5-2-5 of the City Code, Lodging
Establishment “License Fees”
Consideration of proposed ordinance 134-O-08 raising rooming house fees from
$26.00 per roomer to $36.00 per roomer to help cover the cost of the required
annual inspection. Introduced at Council on December 8, 2008. Held at Council on
January 12, 2009.
For Action
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(P10)*Ordinance 32-O-08 Plan Commission Recommendation for a Map Amendment &
Planned Development at 708 Church Street
Consideration of a recommendation from the Plan Commission to rezone the
property at 708 Church Street from D2, Downtown Retail Core Zoning District, to
the D3, Downtown Core Development District, and a grant a Planned Development
on that site of a 49-story residential and retail tower known as the “Fountain
Square Development.” (Revised plan is for a 38-story residential & retail tower.)
A positive vote of six aldermen is required for approval. TABLED IN

COMMITTEE UNTIL COUNCIL ADOPTS THE DOWNTOWN
PLAN.

HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
(H1)* Ordinance 5-O-09 Amending Section 3-25-1 and 3-25-6 of Evanston City Code
Permitting “Now We’re Cookin’” in the Farmers’ Market to Become a Permanent
Event
Consideration of proposed ordinance 5-O-09 amending Section 3-25-1 and 3-25-6
of the Evanston City Code permitting “Now We’re Cookin’” in the Farmers’
Market to become a permanent event.
For Action

OTHER COMMITTEES
APPOINTMENTS
For Appointment Introduction:
Citizens Police Advisory Committee
Citizens Police Advisory Committee

Eva E. Holland-Switchett
Raymond A. Wells

For Appointment Introduction and Confirmation
Civil Service Commission

John Paul Schmidt
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MEETINGS SCHEDULED THROUGH FEBRUARY 2009
Upcoming Aldermanic Committee Meetings:
Wednesday, January 28th
Wednesday, January 28th
Monday, February 2nd
Monday, February 2nd
Wednesday, February 4th
Monday, February 9th
Monday, February 9th
Monday, February 9th
Monday, February 16th
Tuesday, February 17th
Monday, February 23th
Monday, February 23th
Monday, February 23th
Wednesday, February 25th
Wednesday, February 25th
Thursday, February 26th

6:00 pm
7:30 pm
5:30pm
7:00 pm
7:00 pm
5:30 pm
6:30 pm
8:30 pm
7:00 pm
7:30 pm
5:30 pm
6:30 pm
8:30 pm
6:00 pm
7:30 pm
8:00 am

Parking Committee
Economic Development Committee
Special Township Meeting
Public Hearing 2009/10 Budget
Optional Workshop 2009/10 Budget
Administration & Public Works Committee
Planning & Development Committee
City Council Meeting
Human Services Committee Meeting
Housing & Community Development Act Committee

Administration & Public Works Committee
Planning & Development Committee
City Council Meeting
Parking Committee
Economic Development Committee
City-Chamber Committee
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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

CITY OF EVANSTON

2

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

3

CASE NO.:

4

RE:

5

Pikarski (Legal Counsel) representing Nizar Alimohd,

6

property owner, for a special use to establish a

7

convenience store at 812 Davis Street.

8

property is located within the D3 Downtown Core

9

Development District.

10

ZBA 08ZMJV-0091

812 Davis Street.

An application by Gordon and

The subject

Transcribed Report of Proceedings of a hearing in

11

the above captioned matter, held October 7, 2008 at the

12

Evanston Civic Center, City Council Chambers, 2100 Ridge

13

Avenue, Evanston, Illinois, at 7:37 p.m. and presided

14

over by Robert Creamer, Chair.

15

PRESENT:

16

R. CREAMER, Chair

17

B. McLENNAN

18

L. SUMMERS

19

M. RODGERS

20
21

Also present:

22

DOMINICK ARGUMEDO, Zoning Officer

23
24

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES
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1

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

This is a public hearing of

2

the Zoning Board of Appeals of the City of Evanston.

3

The Zoning Ordinance empowers this Board to hear

4

references from the City Council, applications for

5

variances and specials uses, and appeals from decisions

6

of the Zoning Administrator.

7

matter we will either make a final determination or send

8

a recommendation to the City Council.

Depending on the type of

Present tonight are Board Members Beth

9
10

McLennan, Matthew Rodgers, and Lori Summers, and I'm

11

Robert Creamer, the current Chair.

12

quorum.

13

Dominick Argumedo, the Zoning Planner.

14

We therefore have a

Also present tonight from City Staff is

This is a formal hearing, and we have rules

15

that govern our proceedings.

16

that only one person speaks at a time without

17

interruption.

18

necessary to permit the court reporter to accurately

19

record our proceedings.

20

the Board on any matter on the agenda will have an

21

opportunity to do so at the appropriate time.

22

Our most important rule is

It's not just good manners, but it's

Anyone who wishes to address

Our normal procedure is that we hear first

23

from the staff on the documents in the file.

24

then receive testimony or other evidence from the
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1

applicant or appellant.

After the applicant or

2

appellant has completed their initial submission any

3

person who has a legal interest in real property located

4

within 500 feet of the property that is the subject of

5

the application or appeal may then present evidence,

6

reasonably question witnesses, or seek a continuance of

7

the hearing.

8

regarding the matter may do so at that time.

Next, others who wish to make a statement

I should mention that under the ordinance

9
10

governing the rights of applicants and affected property

11

owners at hearings on special uses anyone who offers

12

testimony, be they the applicant or an affected property

13

owner is subject to reasonable questioning after they

14

give their testimony or statement.
So I don't want to discourage anyone from

15
16

making a statement or giving testimony, but I don't want

17

you to be surprised if you find yourself subject to

18

questioning if either the applicant or the appellant, as

19

the case may be, wishes to reasonably ask questions of

20

you.

21

Okay.

When all of the opposing testimony and

22

other statements have been received the applicant or

23

appellant will be given an opportunity for rebuttal.

24

Board Members may ask questions of anyone offering

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES
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1

testimony or statements.

2

will be under oath.

3

rules of evidence we ask that you limit your testimony

4

or statement to your own personal knowledge.

5

testify or make a statement please tell us your name and

6

address, and print your name on the pad that is provided

7

at the podium for that purpose.

10

Although we do not apply the strict

When you

When all of the testimony, other evidence, and

8
9

All testimony and statements

statements have been received we will close the record
and begin our deliberations.
With that we have one matter on the agenda

11
12

tonight, that's the Davis Street matter, the 812 Davis

13

Street matter, and I believe the applicant is here.

14

that correct?

15

MR. PIKARSKI:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Is

Yes, sir.
And I see a number of other

17

people in the audience, and I take it that you, or most

18

of you, are affected property owners.

19
20

Okay.

Is that correct?

I received several positive responses.
So with that I will ask Dominick to introduce

21

the matter and we'll get started.

22

MR. ARGUMEDO:

Thank you, Chairman.

Our first

23

case and only case for the evening for Zoning Board of

24

Appeals Case 08MJV-0091 for which the Board is acting as

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES

(630) 894-9389

5
10/7/08

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

the recommending body to the City Council for this duty,

2

action is decided by a majority vote of the quorum

3

present.

4

Specifically an application by Gordon and

5

Pikarski (Legal Counsel) representing Nizar Alimohd,

6

property owner, for a special use to establish a

7

convenience store at 812 Davis Street.

8

property is located within the D3 Downtown Core

9

Development District.

The subject

Pursuant to Section 6-11-4-3 of

10

the Zoning Ordinance a convenience store requires a

11

special use from the Zoning Board of Appeals and

12

Evanston City Council final approval.

13

proposes to operate a convenience store with liquor

14

sales.

15

The applicant

To clarify, any proposed liquor license that's

16

under the authority of this Board, only the special use

17

to operate a convenience store is under consideration

18

this evening.

19

Filed in connection with the case and

20

presented in the member's packets are the following, the

21

staff report, an 812 Davis Street context map, special

22

use application, the applicant's proposed design and

23

layout of the facility.

24

An administrative interpretation, which
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1

detailed why the store is a convenience store under the

2

Zoning Administrator's determination.

3

administrative interpretation application, a disclosure

4

statement, zoning analysis.

5

public comment was added to your packets.

6

minutes from December 12, 2007, that's the Site Plan

7

Appearance and Review Committee Minutes.

8
9
10

The applicant's

In addition, submitted
And SPARC

Further, 13 letters arrived after your packets
were sent out, would like to comment on the case, these
letters have been presented to you this evening.

11

With that, the floor is yours, sir.

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay, thank you.

At this

13

time I'd like to swear in all of the people who will be

14

testifying or giving evidence on behalf of the applicant

15

since, as I've said, all of our testimony is under oath.

16

So anyone who will or may testify on behalf of the

17

applicant, including the applicant himself, on behalf of

18

the applicant.

19
20

This thing got turned off, excuse me.
would you swear them in, please?
(Witnesses sworn.)

21
22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

24

Okay,

Members of the Board.

Okay.

Counsel?

Good evening Mr. Chairman,

My name is John Pikarski, I'm an
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1

attorney with offices at 303 West Madison Street in

2

Chicago, and I represent the applicant, Nizar Alimohd.

3

With me this evening are my partners, Mr. Thomas

4

Pikarski, seated immediately to my left, and Mr. Chris

5

R. Murphy, seated to his left.

6

Just a little bit of housekeeping before I go

7

into my presentation.

The first thing I would like to

8

spread of record is the fact that we have a four person

9

Board, and I would like that introduced into the record.

10

The typical, strike that.

11

seven people and four affirmative votes are required.

12

In this particular case the Board is composed of four

13

people, and three affirmative votes are required, if I

14

am not mistaken.

15

The Board is composed of

Secondly, I would move to strike all letters

16

that have been proffered to this Board as being hearsay,

17

incapable of being cross-examined, and of little or no

18

probative value because of that.

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Well, on your

20

motion to strike, that will be overruled.

We will

21

accept the letters as statements of the views of the

22

senders, but not for the truth of any factual matters

23

that may be stated.

24

community members believe.

The Board is interested in what the
If they're here you can test
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1

their statements as to factual matters, but we will

2

admit the letters as statements of their opinions.

3

that'll be our ruling.

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

We're here this evening

5

concerning a very small store, 1,540 square feet.

6

you hear me well?

7

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

So

Can

Yes, I can.
Okay.

1,540 square feet.

It is located at 812 Davis Street, it is on the south

10

side of Davis Street in a 12-story building, located in

11

an area that has over 2,000 condominium units.

12

My client wishes to establish a boutique, fine

13

wine, and spirits store.

14

through the history just a little bit.

15

Why are we here?

Let's go

The City has, after extensive review, opined

16

that the subject site should have commercial uses at the

17

first level.

18

indicated that the parking for this building is

19

sufficient.

20

this is a given.

21

The City, after extensive review, has

This is what the legislature has indicated,

The property is located in a D, as in dog, 3

22

Downtown Core Development District, this is the highest

23

zoning, one of the highest zonings, there's one more

24

higher, but this is one of the highest zoning
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1

classifications that the City of Evanston has.

2

The City and the legislature has also opined

3

that this is a retail liquor zone, it's a given.

4

is a retail liquor zone.

5

that a food store is a permitted use in this zone,

6

another given.

This

The City has also indicated

A food store is permitted in this zone.

We are considered a food store because the

7
8

Zoning Administrator has issued an opinion indicating

9

that the sale of beverages, any beverages, causes us to

10

be denominated a food store.

To go one step further,

11

the City has denominated that any food store under 3,200

12

square feet is called a convenience store.
I think is probably the only town in the

13
14

county, that I know of, having practiced zoning law for

15

now 35 years, that denominates this type of a use as a

16

convenience store.

17

defined, not convenience stores.

18

not fall within the popular concept of what a

19

convenience store is.

Most of the time liquor stores are

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

And this clearly does

Counsel, I'm reluctant to

21

interrupt your argument, but you received the

22

Administrator's determination dated May 7, 2008 that

23

this application was for a convenience store.

24

not?
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1

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

3

appeal it, and you didn't.

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes, sir.
And you had 45 days to
Is that right?
We chose not to, yes, sir.
Okay.

So this is a

6

convenience store, and whatever you may think and

7

whatever people may do someplace else, that's a given.

8

So why don't we move on then.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

Yes.

This is a convenience

10

store.

However, I think to all of us convenience stores

11

mean something else.

12

convenience stores raises a prejudice.

13

confident about that.

Convenience stores, the word
I am nothing but

I would also indicate to the Commission that

14
15

the exact opposite decision was made concerning,

16

concerning Wine Styles located at 1711 Sherman in the

17

Zoning Administrator's opinion, the exact same use,

18

exact same size, a little lighter zoning, was found not

19

to be a convenience store.

20

not to be a food store in addition.
Hang on, one second.

21
22
23
24

Or, and was not, was found

It was found to be a

retail -CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Counsel, again, I'm

reluctant to interrupt, but I don't see where this is
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1

going.

2

application meets the standards for a, a special use

3

under the Ordinance.

4

properly or improperly denominated as a convenience

5

store, that decision's been made.

6

It's not going to help us determine whether this

And whether you think it's

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

I realize that, except that

7

it, what I will offer into evidence as Petitioner's No.

8

1 does show in fact that there is a significant question

9

as to the terms and the interpretation of these terms.

10

That's all I'm offering it for.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

11
12

Okay.

Well, we'll receive

it for whatever we deem it to be worth.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

13

We feel that the

14

determination and the denomination has caused this

15

problem.

16

establish a boutique, high-end wine and spirits

17

dealership will have, will be able to meet each of the

18

standards set out in the Ordinance.

19

We feel that our client who is seeking to

And we will be able to prove by unequivocal

20

testimony of our land planning, zoning, and economic

21

development expert, Mr. Joseph Abel, a real estate

22

appraisal expert, Mr. Joseph Ryan, and a project

23

architect, Mr. Greg Goss, of Goss Pasma Architects, each

24

of the standards of the Zoning Ordinance.

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES

(630) 894-9389

12
10/7/08

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

As to the operation of our proposed use it has

2

relatively normal and relatively benign hours of

3

operation, Monday through Thursday, 9:00 a.m. to 10:00

4

p.m., Friday and Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 11:00, Sunday

5

11:00 to 10:00.

6

My client has agreed that it will have no

7

signs in the windows advertising wares.

My client has

8

agreed that the two parking spaces provided to our

9

client will not be used by the employees of our

10

establishment.

That in fact the public parking lot

11

directly across the street, which provides one hour free

12

parking will be utilized for any excess over two people

13

using our parking spaces, and, of course, by our

14

employees.
Our client will indicate, or we will indicate

15
16

on behalf of our client, that he has paid $580,000 for

17

this site.

18

will take about another $95,000, and that the inventory

19

will be approximately $50,000 at the start.

20

client's real estate taxes at this site are $13,000 a

21

year.

22

That the rehab development of this project

Our

We believe that we will have one or two

23

deliveries per week, and have agreed that those

24

deliveries will occur after 10:00 a.m.
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1

relatively small vans, a 10 minute interval will be more

2

than sufficient to unload them.

3

With that I would call as my first witness,

4

Mr. Greg Goss.

I would offer into evidence as

5

Petitioner's 2 the resume of Mr. Goss.

6

MR. GOSS:

And it's Goss.

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

MR. GOSS:

9

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

My name is Greg Goss, (G-o-s-s).

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

I beg your pardon?

G-o-s-s).
Mr. Goss, okay.

Mr. Goss

11

has been sworn.

I must tell you, Mr. Goss, that if

12

you're going to use those exhibits for your presentation

13

they're ours.

14

keep it.

If you use something before us we need to

So there are no surprises.

15

MR. GOSS:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17
18
19
20

Okay.
We'll have those be

Exhibits 3 and 4.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Okay.

Mr. Goss, please

state your name, address, and occupation.
MR. GOSS:

My name is Gregory Goss, I'm a

21

Principle of Goss Pasma Architects, we are located at

22

1601 Sherman Avenue in the Fountain Square Building in

23

Downtown Evanston.

24

Evanston since 1987.

We have occupied our offices in
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2
3
4
5
6

MR. J. PIKARSKI:
subject site, Mr. Goss?
MR. GOSS:

It's about a half a block from our

offices, and I am familiar.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:
use Lulu's Restaurant.
MR. GOSS:

8

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

describe the subject site.
MR. GOSS:

And in fact you frequently

Is that correct?

7

10

Are you familiar with the

Lulu's was on of our projects, yes.
Well, sir, can you please

Well, the owner approached us with

11

a request for a boutique-style store to become the

12

neighborhood source for fine wine selections far

13

different from the big box stores, and consistent with

14

the North Short client base that appreciates a selection

15

of, in the world of the wines.

16

The modest size storefront we utilize, we

17

utilize the understated signage with the sign ban that

18

the developer has built into the, we utilized the sign

19

ban and with a understated design logo for Davis Street

20

Fine Wines and Spirits.

21

The window treatments will be a delicate

22

frosted film logo, or graphic, to keep the windowscape

23

open at all times and invite the street pedestrian

24

traffic into a bright up-scaled space where potential
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1

customers are treated to a showcase of different wines

2

and spirits.

3

When designing the retail space a designer

4

needs to understand the target customer, the product,

5

and the level of pricing that is expected.

6

customer can seek help selecting a bottle of any price

7

point from mid-ranged wines and beers to special

8

occasion fine liquors among a various imported cheeses

9

and snacks.

10

Here a

The boutique-style store will have a well laid

11

out wine display in low wood wine racks to allow full

12

visibility of what the store can offer.

13

Customers will be treated to a rich autumn

14

stained pre-finished wood plank floor.

15

variety of red and white bottle wines will be displayed

16

in front of light maple or dark cherry millwork wood

17

paneling as backdrops to displays of the fine, of the

18

featured wine selections.

19

The different

Our color palette is a buff and brown hue

20

walls which, with highlights of orange and red

21

accessories.

22

entering your average liquor store.

23
24

And these are signs that you are not

Jewelry track store track lighting will be our
source of illumination to highlight the variety of
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1

colored bottles and shapes, and not simply provide

2

standard florescent overhead lighting utilized in most

3

of convenience stores.

4

Our goal, and the owner's goal, was to have a

5

shop that will offer service to wine connoisseurs or

6

simple customers that will enjoy a collection of the

7

best wines to mid-range wines and spirits.

8

to provide good old-fashioned service that Evanston is

9

known for.

Staff with,

This concept seemed to fit the store and the

10
11

neighborhood and could provide another successful

12

business for their downtown area.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

13

I believe that each of the

14

boards that you've indicated have been also included in

15

the packet that the Board has.

16

MR. GOSS:

17

Is that correct?

The renderings are in the packet,

yes.

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

19

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

That's correct.
No, sir, do you have an

20

opinion as to whether or not the proposed use when, will

21

in any way alter the essential character of the

22

neighborhood in which it's located?

23

MR. GOSS:

I do not.

24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

What?

Do you have no
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1
2

opinion?
MR. GOSS:

I have an opinion that it's, when I

3

was approached with the, with the concept of this store

4

it seemed like a natural for what has happened to the

5

Downtown Evanston market, the amount of residential, you

6

know, components there, and the, and the need for, you

7

know, pedestrian traffic destination stores rather than

8

having to drive to Skokie or Howard Street.

9

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Now, do you have an opinion

10

as to whether or not the proposed use is compatible in

11

character with the surrounding area in terms of site

12

planning, building scale, and project design?

13

MR. GOSS:

That was our approach when we

14

designed the facade and the interior.

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Do you have an opinion, as

16

an architect of now many years duration, as to whether

17

or not the use will have any adverse effect upon the

18

general welfare of the neighborhood or community?

19

MR. GOSS:

Well, for the kind of store that is

20

being proposed here I find it as an up-scale component

21

of a North Short establishment.

22

resident, we have a similar store called the Bottle Shop

23

in Downtown Wilmette, and it has become a very popular

24

and active place with it's activities and it's sales.

I'm a Wilmette
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1

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Your design, has it so been

2

created so as to promote and protect pedestrian safety

3

and comfort?

4

MR. GOSS:

We feel the, you know, the

5

brightness of the store, the up-scale look of the store,

6

will attract that type of clientele, and attract the

7

pedestrian traffic that will be moving from the public

8

transportation and throughout the downtown area.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9
10

of Mr. Goss.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

11
12

I have no further questions

All right.

questions from Board Members?

Lori?

13

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15

right.

Do we have any

Not at this time.

Oh, not at this time?

I have two or three.
First of all, you mentioned price points for

16
17

the goods that were going to be sold there in your

18

testimony.

19

price points, what are they or will they be?

20

All

What did you mean when you talked about

MR. GOSS:

My understanding is the products

21

will range from eight to $20 a bottle.

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

MR. GOSS:

24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Eight to 20?

Is that correct?
Yep, 10 to 25.
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1

MR. GOSS:

10 to 25, yeah.

So we're looking

2

at mid-range to expensive wine establishment, not your

3

low --

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

average.

6

lower.

8
9
10

There will be some higher, there will be none

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

7

None lower than eight or

20?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

11

the target customer.

12

target customer?

13

And that would be the

MR. GOSS:

None lower than eight.
Okay.

And you mentioned

Who did you understand to be the

Basically, the residents of the

14

downtown area, the condominiums that were mentioned.

15

When you think of the property values there and the, the

16

type of residents that are going to be there, they tend

17

to be your wine connoisseurs or interested in the wine

18

products, the liquor products.

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Any other

20

questions at this time?

21

ask you to stay around because the affected property

22

owners will have an opportunity, if they wish, to

23

question you.

24

Okay, Mr. Goss, I'm going to

So --

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

If I may just ask one
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1

question.

2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Yes.
Mr. Goss, your office is

4

immediately adjacent to the subject site.

5

correct?

6

MR. GOSS:

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

Is that

It's catty-corner from the site.
So that you have been to

this site literally thousands of times?
MR. GOSS:

9

I miss the Quizno's sandwich shop

10

that it used to be and was anxious to see what it would

11

be replaced with.

12

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

13

MR. GOSS:

14

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

15

So that you are more than --

Familiar with the site and --- familiar with the subject

site?

16

MR. GOSS:

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

18

next witness I call Mr. Joseph Abel.

19

state your name, address, and occupation?

20

MR. ABEL:

-- and the neighborhood.

Correct.

Thank you very much.

As my

Mr. Abel, please

Joseph H. Abel (A-b-e-l), 200

21

Forrest Avenue, Glen Ellyn, Illinois, Planning, Zoning

22

and Economic Development Consultant.

23

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

24

And were the Commissioner of

the City of Chicago or Executive Director of the City of
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Chicago Development Commission?

2

MR. ABEL:

I was Executive Director of the

3

Economic Development Commission of the City of Chicago

4

for five years.

5
6

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

And were you also Director

of the DuPage County Regional Planning Commission?
MR. ABEL:

7

The Planning Commission and the

8

Development Department, which included planning,

9

building, zoning, and economic development, everything

10

having to do with planning, zoning, economic

11

development, building.

12

was under my jurisdiction, staff of approximately 60

13

people for 17 years.

The entire development process

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

14

You feel then, therefore,

15

that you are entitled to be called an expert in

16

planning, zoning, and economic development?
MR. ABEL:

17

Yes, I have a degree in City and

18

Regional Planning from the University of Illinois.

19

done my, I've done graduate work at the University of

20

Chicago.

21

University of Oklahoma.

22

approximately 50 years.

23
24

I've

I've done my economic development work at the
I've been doing this for

In addition to the DuPage County and the City
of Chicago I also worked for a Planning Consultant, I
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was on the design team for the new town of Oakbrook,

2

Illinois.

3

years, and have worked with just about every major

4

developer, and done economic development for a number of

5

cities.

6
7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

And in fact, have you also

appeared before this Commission?
MR. ABEL:

8
9

And I have my own firm now for the last 12

Yes, I've appeared before a number

of Boards in Evanston over the last 20, 30 years.

And I

10

might as well just say I'm very familiar with Evanston,

11

I've lived here, both my children were born at Evanston

12

Hospital, my wife was a teacher at Evanston High School,

13

and we still have all our doctors here.

14

into the downtown area at least half a dozen, dozen

15

times a year.

16

happening.

So I'm very familiar with what's been

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

17

And I come back

I would offer into evidence

18

as Petitioner's No. 3 the CV of Mr. Abel in written

19

form.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

Well, we have a procedural

21

issue with the numbers.

We'll take it as three, and I

22

guess we'll number the exhibits later on.

23

record they would be three and four, but not, let's make

24

this five.

All right, it'll be five.
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1
2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 6.

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

I show you what we will mark

Right.
Could you please tell us

what this is?

6

MR. ABEL:

Yeah, I felt it was important, even

7

though I, like I say, I've been in the downtown for, you

8

know, last 40 years, to come in and identify exactly the

9

land uses that are in the area in, in the area

10

surrounding the subject site just to get a really good

11

detailed feeling of what's going on in this surrounding

12

property.

13

As it was mentioned, this is rather unique

14

because there are only two areas within the entire city

15

where there can be the retail sales of liquor, and I've

16

identified that with the yellow line.

17

retail core that was added to --

18

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

21

MR. ABEL:

There's the

Can the Board see this -Yes, we can.
-- adequately?

Basically, the retail liquor zones,

22

which there are two, the core and the retail, pretty

23

much extend to the north to Emerson, on the west to Oak,

24

down to the lake to the south, and over to Chicago
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Avenue to the east, and it's sort of a broken up line.

2

And then I studied the, the Downtown Plan.

3

And the Downtown Plan goes just a little bit beyond, and

4

I'm assuming one of these days when the plan is finally,

5

the most recently plan is finally updated it's probably,

6

these yellow lines will switch and fill in the little

7

gap that surrounds this area that is called the entire

8

downtown area.

9

And then I proceeded to look at some of the

10

statistics for the area, just to make sure, although,

11

like I say, I have personally located uses like this in

12

other downtown areas.

13

town, I was the Economic Development Director there

14

under contract for about three years and brought in the

15

only liquor store in the downtown area about the same

16

size as the subject property.

I'm thinking of one in my own

And like most downtown areas over the last 12,

17
18

13 years uses come and go, but the, the liquor store,

19

which, again, specializes in fine wines and spirits, and

20

just the very small amount of beer, has probably been

21

the most stable of the uses in the downtown.
I usually for the smaller communities the most

22
23

important thing for a downtown is a theater and a

24

bakery.

After you have those two, and they seem to be
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the most stable, then comes your fine wine and stores

2

like that.

3

And so, number one, we're dealing with a use

4

that I think will be a stable use in the downtown.

5

one that will be needed.

6

standards, but I'd like to talk a little bit about,

7

about the need.

And

So we'll go through the

8

I think your first standard, and I'll sort of

9

just go through them a little bit, is that we should be

10

talking about the Comprehensive Plan and also the Zoning

11

Ordinance.

12

It's interesting because when I look at the

13

purpose of the D3, and that's the most important thing

14

to look at in addition to the use list, it specifically

15

states that the D3 Downtown Core Development District is

16

intended to provide for the highest density of business

17

in-fill development and large scale re-development

18

within Downtown Evanston.

19

has, has taken off dramatically, and that's pretty much

20

taking care of itself somewhat.

21

Obviously, the large scale

But the smaller stores, it says the district

22

is also intend to encourage and sustain a mix of office,

23

retail, and residential uses.

24

remember here is that we are dealing with an existing

I think what we have to
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retail space, there was a Quizno's in this particular

2

space prior.

3

I looked at the statistics in terms of what

4

uses have been a little bit overdone in the downtown and

5

which ones are somewhat short in terms of their need.

6

asked myself, I wonder why the Quizno's left and the

7

Petitioner purchased this property?

8

the Downtown Evanston Market Assessment prepared just

9

recently, November 5 of 2007 by the Goodman Williams

I

The statistics in

10

Group indicates that restaurants have been a little bit

11

overdone.

12

But it was interesting that when I went to the

13

chart under the heading beer, wine, and liquor, the

14

demand that can be supported in the area is 11,770,000,

15

the supply is only 1,000,658.

16

gap in the downtown area.

17

entire downtown, I mean, entire City of Evanston, I'm

18

talking about the statistics just for your downtown core

19

area, there's a gap there of $10 million.

There is an opportunity

I'm not talking about the

20

Now, as an Economic Development Consultant I

21

know you can never capture the entire $10 million, but

22

statistically this shows that there is a tremendous need

23

for this particular use in the downtown area.

24

tremendous amount of dollars that it can capture, which
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2

means additional sales tax for the community.
And then going back to the Comprehensive Plan,

3

that was one of the things that the plan talked about,

4

is trying to upgrade the downtown, which has been

5

successful, and to increase the tax base, and to make it

6

a pedestrian friendly area.

7

I looked at a number of maps in your most

8

recent downtown study.

9

to be ideally situated.

This particular store is going
The plan lists a number of

10

traffic generators.

11

your new development that's directly to the north of the

12

subject property, and then also I think one of the other

13

generators was the Rotary International.

14

Two of the greatest generators,

So when you look at the Plan you start saying

15

to yourself, my goodness, it's in the transportation

16

core, it's next to the Metra North Lines, Union Pacific

17

Station, the CTA Purple Line.

18

this, represents the subject property, the CTA, the

19

Union Pacific, the new major development directly across

20

the street, including the parking garage, and we'll get

21

into parking in a little bit, the Rotary International.

22
23
24

Everything falls within

But this area is just very dynamic.
And we're dealing with a retail floor space of
a little bit over 1,500 square feet.
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1

me to believe that in this particular location this

2

can't be a successful use, and that it is also is in

3

keeping with the uses around it.

4

Lulu's, as the architect mentioned that he goes to, and

5

seems like everybody else does too.

6

equivalent of a Orange Julius next to that.

7

around the corner there is a service use, shoe repair,

8

and things of that nature.

Directly next door is

There's, like, the
And then

I sort of got the feeling that maybe somewhere

9
10

along the line some people think that, you know, this

11

should be a GAP or something.

12

spent years trying to bring uses into downtowns.

13

said, I was successful in Glen Ellyn with a, with the

14

wine store, I was extremely successful in getting

15

Starbuck's in.

16

into the smaller, first floor spaces.

Well, you know, I've
As I

So those are the kinds of uses that go

The City made a decision when they approved

17
18

the planned development, which is what your purpose and

19

intent in the D3, it's to, the intent is to encourage

20

and sustain a mix of office, retail, and residential

21

uses.

22

difference between selling wine, or selling a loaf of

23

bread, or preparing, repairing a pair of shoes.

24

all fall within the same convenience, service, whatever

Retail is a very broad category.
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you want to call them.

2

I know the attorney was trying to make a

3

little bit about the, the terminology, but I really

4

don't care what you call the use that we're asking for.

5

This is a convenience to the people in the area.

So if

6

we want to call it a convenience store, that's fine with

7

me.

8

and that retail product is wine and spirits.

But it's a convenience to sell a retail product,

So in terms of the purpose and intent of the

9
10

Zoning Ordinance I feel it's perfectly met.

The City is

11

the one that made the decision some time ago to allow a

12

seven-story condo to go in this location, and they're

13

the ones that approved a condominium retail space on the

14

first floor, and there were no limits put in that

15

conditional use, or planned development.
I have approved literally hundreds of PUD's

16
17

and conditional uses, and special uses, and I know you

18

can put all the conditions you want on this, hours of

19

operation, no signage in the window, which you already

20

agree to.

21

square foot space that the City already approved and

22

approved it for retail use.

23

and just wearing my planning and zoning hat, that we've

24

been going through this exercise.

So as far as I'm concerned this is a 1,500

So I'm a little surprised,

But again, it's
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because of the definition of the convenience store

2

because it's under 3,200 square feet.

3

space that has already been approved for retail use, the

4

City made that determination a long time ago, this is a

5

mixed-use site.

6

But as far as a

In terms of who's going to use this product,

7

based on the two or three that I have been involved in,

8

when you asked about the price point, I think the price

9

point is really going to be, you know, more, the average

10

was 10 to 25, I see the champagnes and the Proseccos and

11

things like that, going into much higher ranges.

12

the kind of foot traffic, it's the kind of statistics

13

that I found when I started going through all the

14

economic data.

That's

Within the whole Village of Glen Ellyn, we're

15
16

talking about 25,000 people, who have successfully

17

sustained a facility like this, I'm sure the, the one

18

that the architect referred to in Wilmette falls in that

19

same area.

20

traffic and everything, there are 19,356 employees in

21

the downtown area of which 6,600 are in offices, the

22

rest are in service businesses and things of that

23

nature.

24

In this particular area, with the pedestrian

My 17-years, or my years as a consultant in an
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office similar to a location like Downtown Evanston, I

2

can tell you that a lot of those people are going to, on

3

their lunch hour, pick up and select wines that they

4

want to take home for a special dinner or an occasion.

5

So we're not only talking about the 8,000

6

approximately people not living in the downtown area,

7

and when I read the Plan we're talking about eventually

8

going up to 12,000 residents just in this downtown area

9

that I show in this, in a little expanded area of this

10

yellow, just the slightly expanded area, you're talking

11

about 70, 8,000 residents, as I mentioned, and 19,000

12

people who are working there.
And on top of it, this particular location is

13
14

one, in one of the highest pedestrian areas that the

15

plan has identified just because of all the traffic

16

generators, pedestrian traffic generators that are

17

around the subject site.

18

to get to most of the traffic generators, whether

19

they're the transportation generators or the other

20

things like hotels, office buildings, things of that

21

nature.

22

People must go by this store

So need has definitely been addressed.
I don't want to carry this on forever, I'm

23

going to go just to the actual standards.

24

the Comprehensive Plan just about everything the
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1

Comprehensive Plan wants to have done is being done in

2

the downtown area.

3

And this particular one little location in an

4

existing building that's already been approved,

5

obviously will take advantage of that, but we'll also, I

6

think, compliment the location.

7

a particular retail use that, that I personally believe

8

is needed in this particular area, and will be of a

9

tremendous convenience to the people working, and

It brings into the area

10

living, and just coming into the downtown area just to

11

shop.
So that was, oh, I probably should start off

12
13

with A, which is one of the special uses specifically

14

listed in the Zoning Ordinance.

15

that at the very beginning when -MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16
17
18

I think we took care of

I think we can stipulate to

that.
MR. ABEL:

Yeah, when the Chairman said it's

19

convenience, it's convenience, I'm not going to argue

20

with it and I agree with it.

21
22

Number 2 is the, the general plan and the
Zoning Ordinance, I just covered that.

23

C, it will not cause a negative cumulative

24

effect when it's effect is considered in conjunction
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1

with the cumulative effect of various special uses of

2

all types on the immediate neighborhood and the effect

3

of the proposed type of special use upon the City as a

4

whole.

5

Again, I've indicated that this is a

6

legitimate retail use, because it's a special use you

7

can put the conditions on it.

8

who was in charge of the retail liquor zone in the

9

manager's office, and there are all kinds of conditions

I did talk to the person

10

that are, also have to be met as part of getting that

11

liquor license and being part of this particular zone.

12

So those are above and beyond the conditions that the

13

Zoning Board would want to put on the special use.
It does not interfere with or diminish the

14
15

value of property in the neighborhood.

I'm not an

16

appraiser, but from a planning standpoint this is a

17

legitimate retail use, it will not have any negative

18

impact.
One of the things I thought about, in terms of

19
20

perception, was that sometimes there's the problem with

21

people assuming that maybe people will be coming in and,

22

you know, what you find in your typical liquor store out

23

on a roadway, buying a half-pint or a pint, or something

24

like that.

Under this zone it is not allowed.
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1

smallest bottle that can be sold is 40 ounces, so there

2

will be no sales of liquor in bottles of less than 40

3

ounces.

4

it's a concern I asked the client about immediately.

5

said, I hope in this particular location you're not

6

proposing that.

7

going with good quality fine wine.

So that removes that particular concern, and

And the answer was, no, we're just

So, again, next to Lulu's, Orange Julius

8
9

I

around the corner, all the uses in the surrounding area.

10

I walked every block for about four blocks and I

11

recorded all the land uses in that area, there is no use

12

there whose value would be diminished by the presence of

13

a high quality wine retail establishment.
It can be adequately served by public

14
15

facilities and services, that was a given when the

16

building was built and this commercial space was

17

approved, everything is there, every utility you can

18

think of.
Does not cause undue traffic congestion.

19

The

20

amount of, I personally believe that the greatest number

21

of people that come into this store will be foot

22

traffic.

23

and wants to stop there, there are the two assigned

24

spaces, there are curbs there, there are the curb

But if some reason someone is on the way home
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1

parking.

2

I know being an Economic Development Director

3

for communities, every community seems to think they

4

don't have enough parking spaces.

5

this location is that right across the street from the

6

major parking garage, which allows the first hour of

7

free parking.

8

where I go.

9

to come.

The nice thing about

Every time I've come into the area that's
So it's convenient if you, if you do want

And I'm sure part of the advertising brochure

10

for this facility will say, if you need to park, park

11

across the street.

12

more than an hour shopping for wine, so that will be

13

very convenient.

And I don't think most people spend

14

Even though people complain, I've been to this

15

site four times, I've been just down the street, my wife

16

seems to especially like, I think it's called Cuckoo's,

17

and, or Cuckoo's Women's Shop.

18

come from the Evanston Hospital over here I can always

19

find a parking space.

20

a traffic congestion problem.

21

into this retail space is going to create some

22

additional traffic, vehicular, and it's going to have

23

deliveries.

24

And every time we leave,

So I'm convinced that there's not
Any use that would go

And we've already mentioned that most of your
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1

wine dealers, and I've followed the one especially that

2

I brought into Glen Ellyn, because that was always a

3

concern because it's very close to a corner.

4

when they get their deliveries they get cases of wine at

5

a time, they're not getting trucks coming three, four

6

times a day and dropping off material.

Their,

And I think it was stated that we're talking

7
8

about two major deliveries a week, and it can be set at

9

a time-specific.

So I don't see it as a problem.

And

10

as I said, no matter what goes in there it's going to

11

have to have traffic.

12

delivery.

I mean, have some sort of

13

Again, the nicest thing about this is the

14

built in pedestrian traffic that's already in place

15

ready to purchase from this facility.
The next one is preserve significant historic

16
17

and architectural resources.

There really aren't,

18

pretty not applicable.

19

is a well-designed seven-story condo, and the ground

20

floor uses there are all, I think, have nice signage and

21

things of that nature.

22

proposed will fit right into the architectural

23

resources.

24

significance there.

The building that it's located

So the signage that's being

Obviously there's nothing of historical
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1

The next one is preserve significant natural

2

and environmental features.

3

applicable.

4

Again, that's not

And then the last one is it complies with all

5

other applicable regulations of the district in which it

6

is located and other applicable ordinances.

7

we're not asking for any variations, only the special

8

use to locate a convenience store that will primarily

9

sell wine and spirits.

10

And that's all I have I think.

11

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

12
13
14

And again,

Just one question, Mr. Abel.

If this site were over 3,200 square feet would it be a
permitted use?
MR. ABEL:

In my opinion, yes.

And I concur,

15

I guess I should, I should, as I recall the, the

16

interpretation by the Zoning Ordinance, right I concur

17

with totally.

18
19
20
21
22

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

I have no further questions

of Mr. Abel.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Any questions

from the Board at this time?
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

I have a question, and

23

it was just, I don't know necessarily directly to Mr.

24

Abel but kind of further brought up by one of his
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1

comments related to the, you said that within the area

2

that nothing can be sold that's under 40 ounces?

3
4

MR. ABEL:

Yes, that's, yeah, that's a

requirement of this district, the retail liquor zone.

5

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

I also noticed that

6

there were reference to beer in some of the literature

7

and that sort of thing.

8

clarify is, is get a better clarification of is beer in,

9

is it just wine, is it liquor too?

So I guess what I'd like to

10

are we talking about here?

11

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

What are we, what

The proposed use is 90

12

percent liquor, 10 percent accessory uses, pates,

13

crackers, nuts, as was stated in the application.

14

will be beer sales, it will not be individual can sales

15

whatsoever.

17
18
19
20
21
22

The beer --

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

16

There

So are we talking kegs

here?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

No, no.

There'd be

specialty beers.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

So you have to buy a

case of beer in order -MR. J. PIKARSKI:

At minimally a six-pack of

23

the specialty beers.

The, it would be, yes, it would be

24

six-packs of beer would be typical of the higher-end
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1

beers, which are very expensive.

2

MR. ABEL:

The --

Let me, let me state that the one

3

that I'm most familiar with that I brought in, and I

4

sort of watch it carefully because I have to live in the

5

community too.

6

compete, they're not going to be selling the Budweiser

7

and the GDB, or what is, I don't even know what some of

8

the others are, but Lighthouse and that.

9

compete with the Jewel and places like that that have

The types of beers that, you can't

You can't

10

that on sale for, you know, 6.99 for a six-pack or

11

whatever.
The kinds of beers that are going to be here

12
13

are the very specialty beers that are usually done by

14

smaller breweries.

15

ounce, when I asked her that, that only applies to the

16

wines and spirits.

17

of 12 ounce beers.

So not to confuse you, that 40

Obviously, you can sell a six-pack

But again, with the limited space and you

18
19

heard what, you know, it cost for, to put this place in

20

operation, you can't afford to sell a 6.99 six-pack of

21

beer.

22

wines and spirits.

23
24

So it's very specialty-type beers and high-end

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Okay.

And so you said,

other than that we're talking about individual bottles
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1

and that sort of thing, but we're not going, definitely

2

not going up to a keg level amount of --

3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Absolutely not, and we would

4

welcome that as a condition of Board approval.

5

no interest in it, first of all, and secondly, should

6

you decide to place that as a proviso, we would have no

7

objection to it whatsoever.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

8
9

Okay.

We have

I think that

clarifies for me.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

All right.

Well, as long

11

as we're talking about things in addition to wine and

12

spirits, so we've got some beer in the mix now, what

13

about soft drinks, mixers, the tonic for my gin and

14

tonic?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

15

That would be available in

16

small quantities.

But, you know, clearly that would be

17

an ancillary use.

Clearly the profit margin in that

18

type of thing is minimal, and the floor space devoted to

19

it would be minimal, and obviously the sales would be

20

minimal.

21

liquors I think you're mandated to, to have it.

22
23
24

But as a convenience item to, to the high-end

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

So just to clarify, we're

going to have fine wine, which now means $8.00 and up?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

$10 to $25 to be --
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1

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

3

$10 and up?
10 to 25 would be the norm,

but significant numbers would be higher than that.

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And spirits.

Are you going

5

to have high-end spirits, only single malt scotch, or

6

some more pedestrian brands?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7
8

only the premium brands be sold.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9
10

It is intended that, that

Okay.

Only premium spirits?

And then some beer and then some soft drinks.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

11

We're not really talking

12

about Pepsi Cola or Coca Cola, we're talking about

13

soft --

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

-- quote, soft drinks, end

quote.

17

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

18

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

23

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

24

Soda --

Tonic water?
Correct.
Mixers?
Yes, sir.
Sure about that?
Yes, sir.
Okay, all right.

Then I

have a question for Mr. Abel, unless Matt or Beth have
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1
2

questions.
I think you gave us an opinion that you

3

thought that this, this store would be a stable addition

4

to the existing mix of stores in the downtown area.

5

I understand that correctly?

6

MR. ABEL:

7

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Did

Yes.
Okay.

Did you consider

8

when you reached that opinion that there are at least

9

four other stores that sell wine and/or liquor within

10
11

three blocks of this place?
MR. ABEL:

I considered, I don't know about

12

three or four, I visited the two, one to the west and

13

then one about a block and a half north on Sherman on

14

the east side of the street.

15

is, is good in this country.

16

But again, the competition

And on top of it, I take you back to that

17

statistic where the detailed market analysis shows a

18

tremendous gap still in that area.

19

will capture more than the other two that I'm familiar

20

with only because of it's ideal location.

21

that is to the north, and I'm not saying it's a bad

22

location, but it's nowhere near what this store is.

23
24

I think this store

The store

So if you're losing, if this is money that's,
as we talk about in economic development, you're losing,
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1

you're not capturing, I'm saying that there are

2

pedestrians that are going to walk by this store and

3

will spend money and create sales tax for the community.

4

Whereas, they probably won't walk that extra block and-

5

a-half up north.

6

way and I'm just not going to do it.

7

really want it they, sure, they'll go there, and I'm

8

sure they're a successful business.

They'll just say, you know, I'm on my
Now, if they

But when you look at all the attributes of

9
10

this particular site, this is the one that's going to do

11

the best of the three.

12

consideration.

13

you're referring to.

And that's what I took into

I don't know where that other one is

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15

ask you some specific questions then.

16

you're referring to north called Wine Styles at 1741

17

Sherman?

18

MR. ABEL:

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Well, let me

Is the store that

Correct.
Okay.

And that's between

20

your proposed store and a large employer sometimes known

21

as Northwestern University?

22

MR. ABEL:

23

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

24

Yes.
Okay.

So if somebody were

walking from Northwestern to the El stop they would walk
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1

by Wine Styles before they walked by this place, right?

2

MR. ABEL:

Correct.

And, but they might do

3

some comparative shopping too, that's the advantage of

4

having two.

5

Director I've never encouraged the community to try and

6

only have one of each kind of use.

7

all, I think it's anti-competitive against the American

8

principle, but I also don't think it makes any sense.

I've never, an Economic Development

I mean, first of

I think variety is what makes this, most

9
10

downtown areas that I've worked in, that's why you want

11

three or four children's shops, four or five dress

12

shops, jewelry stores, department stores, you want a

13

mix.

14

only had one restaurant.

15

make any sense.

16

And I don't think I'd want to be in a town that
I mean, it just, just doesn't

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Fair enough.

But let me

17

ask you about the other store that you mentioned.

Is

18

that Evanston First Liquors at 1019 Davis Street?

Is

19

that the other one you looked at?

20

MR. ABEL:

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22

Yes, um-hmm.
Okay.

Did you happen to

check out the Cost Plus World Market at 1725 Maple?

23

MR. ABEL:

No.

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

So you don't know
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1

whether they sell wine or not?

2

MR. ABEL:

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

MR. ABEL:

No, that one I don't.
Okay.

But I do know, well I know Cost

5

Plus and I know they sell wine, I've been in other

6

stores.

7

dealer, to be quite honest.

8

wrong with that, it's just that it's not what we're

9

catering too.

10
11

They're a little more of a, a discount wine

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

MR. ABEL:

13

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

And they're, they're

closer to a large employer as well.
MR. ABEL:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

18

And last but not

Yes.

15

17

Okay.

least, did you check out Whole Foods at 1641 Chicago?

12

14

But that, there's nothing

Is that right?

That's correct.
Okay.

And none of that

changes your opinion?
MR. ABEL:

No.

It's, like I say, not only my

19

opinion, but it's also the opinion of Goodman Williams

20

Group, who did the analysis that shows there's still a

21

tremendous gap.

22

Again, I occasionally buy wine, we have a

23

excellent Whole Foods in Wheaton, and I'll occasionally

24

do some of that when I go shopping with my wife.
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1

can't go shopping with my wife constantly, and she

2

doesn't want to pick them out herself so I get that job.

3

So I don't see wine as being one of the big items at

4

Whole Foods.

I mean, it's their other things, the

5

natural meats and the organic materials.

6

they have it there.

But again,

But I still think all of them you've mentioned

7
8

can still compete, will still be viable.

I don't think

9

this small store will force any of them to leave.

I

10

think they will all do exceptionally well.

11

looking at everything that's in the reports, and in

12

terms of the uses around this particular site, it

13

happens to be what we call the, you know, the hundred

14

dollar corner, you know, it's the good corner.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15
16

Good.

But again,

Any other questions?

Okay.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

17

One question.

The market

18

analysis by Goodman Williams, that was commissioned by

19

the City of Evanston?

20

MR. ABEL:

City of Evanston, correct.

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

Well, again, as

22

with Ms. Goss, Mr. Abel, I'm going to ask you to stick

23

around --

24

MR. ABEL:

Sure.
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1
2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

property owners have some questions as well.

3

MR. ABEL:

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

5

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

6
7

-- in case the affected

Very good, thank you.
Thank you.

Okay.

I call as my next witness

Mr. Joseph Ryan.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay, you've just handed us

8

a booklet entitled, Consulting Report 812 Davis Street,

9

Evanston, Illinois as of March 28, 2008, by the LaSalle

10

Appraisal Group.

Where are with numbers?

11

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Number 7.
This will be number 7 then.
Mr. Ryan, please state your

14

name, address, and occupation?

15

MR. RYAN:

Joseph Ryan, I'm President of

16

LaSalle Appraisal Group with offices at 11 South LaSalle

17

Street, Suite 3000, in the City of Chicago.

18

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

And, briefly, can you tell

19

us, do you possess any credentials in the field of

20

appraisal work?

21

MR. RYAN:

Yes, I do.

I have the MAI

22

designation from the Appraisal Institute, I was

23

previously employed by Cook County.

24

there was Director of Technical Review where I was

My last position
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1

responsible for the entire assessment process in Cook

2

County.

3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Now, sir, at my request did

4

you examine the subject site?

5

MR. RYAN:

6

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7

describe the subject site?

8
9

MR. RYAN:

I did.
And could you briefly

The subject property is located at

812 Davis Street on the north side of the street.

10

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

11

MR. RYAN:

South side.

I'm sorry, south side of the

12

street, the parking garage is on the north side of the

13

street in Downtown Evanston.

14

a mixed-use, commercial use is on the first floor,

15

residential condominium units on the upper floors,

16

mixed-use building.

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

It's a small storefront in

And have you, again at my

18

request, formulated an opinion as to whether or not the

19

subject use, let's go back.

20

proposed use of the subject site?

21

MR. RYAN:

22

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

23
24

Are you familiar with the

I am.
And what is your idea of the

proposed use of the subject site?
MR. RYAN:

I understand the proposed use to be
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1

a fine wine and spirit store.

2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Now, have you formulated an

3

opinion as to whether or not the proposed use will in

4

any way interfere with or diminish the value of property

5

in the neighborhood in which it's located?

6

MR. RYAN:

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8
9
10
11
12
13

I have.
And what is that opinion,

sir?
MR. RYAN:

That the proposed use, special use

will not diminish or impair surrounding property values.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

And what factors do you take

into consideration in arriving at that opinion, sir?
MR. RYAN:

Well, what I did was try to find

14

other North Shore uses, single-story liquor store wine

15

shop-type uses, and I found six.

16

One was located just west of the subject

17

property at 1019 Davis in Evanston, another at, just

18

north of the subject property at 1742 Sherman in

19

Evanston, a location on Green Bay Road in Wilmette,

20

another location on Green Bay Road in Glencoe, another

21

location at 9955 Gross Point Road in Skokie, and a sixth

22

location at 4033 Old Orchard Road in Skokie.

23
24

Now, these are single-story, single-use
buildings that sell either wine and spirits or full
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1

service-type liquor stores.

2

three-year period, 2005, 2006 and 2007, examined all the

3

properties that sold, well, I shouldn't say all the

4

properties, but they're listed in the report, say 1019

5

Davis.

6

What I did was, over a

In the first four columns I listed all the

7

properties that had sold, studio, one and two-bedroom

8

units, and three-bedroom units.

9

sold, the sale price ratio to the listing price.

I studied the amounts
And

10

then I viewed Evanston as a whole for each of those

11

years, for both condominium units, that would be the

12

single family attached and for single family homes, that

13

would be the single family detached.

14

Now, if a liquor store use would diminish

15

surrounding property values there would be a couple

16

tell-tale signs.

17

longer marketing period, and the second being because of

18

the extended marketing period the sale price to listing

19

price ratio would be 85 percent or less.

The first being that it would have a

20

For the six properties I studied almost all

21

the properties had sale price to listing price ratios

22

above 95 percent, and the marketing times were the same

23

in the control area, which was a half mile within the

24

subject property, as the suburb in a whole.
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1

So based on that data for both single family,

2

and single family condominium units and detached single

3

family homes, or free-standing homes, for all six

4

locations we did not find any diminishment in value due

5

to a liquor store use from the control area to the

6

suburb as a whole.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7
8

formulated an opinion as to this proposed use?
MR. RYAN:

9

Yes, I have.

10

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

11

MR. RYAN:

12

That this use would have no

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

I have no further questions

of Mr. Ryan.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15
16

And what is that opinion?

diminishment on the surrounding property values.

13
14

And from that have you

Do any of the Board Members

have questions?
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

17

I was unclear, I mean,

18

I believe you said that the other locations that you

19

reviewed were, were similar in nature or just liquor

20

store.

Could you maybe clarify what --

21

MR. RYAN:

22

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

23
24

Well, that they were --- beyond address what,

what types of locations we're talking about?
MR. RYAN:

The subject property is going to be
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1

the whole focus, the whole use of the property is going

2

to be for a liquor store.

3

Shore, or I don't know that Skokie would be the North

4

Shore, but within a reasonable distance to the subject

5

property that, similar uses.

6

So I found uses on the North

These are all one-story, well, I'll go through

7

them for you.

1019 Evanston is a storefront, 1742

8

Sherman Wine Styles is first floor retail with two

9

residential floors above.

Foremost in Wilmette is free-

10

standing.

Green Bay Road in Glencoe, Binny's, is in a

11

strip center.

12

Skokie, well, they were open the day I was there.

13

Tony's Liquors on Skokie on Old Orchard Road.

Schaeffer's on Gross Point Road in
And

14

So they're all free-standing buildings, or I'm

15

sorry, single-use facilities so that I could do my study

16

to compare the control area to the suburb as a whole.

17

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

19

sorry.

20

at were in 2007 and before?

21
22

Thank you.

I'm not finished, Mr. Ryan,

It appears that all of the sales that you looked

MR. RYAN:

Right, so I had full years to deal

with, right.

23

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

24

work back in March of 2008?

Okay.

And you did this
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1
2

MR. RYAN:

Well, it's been somewhat ongoing,

that's when it started.

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

MR. RYAN:

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, when was it finished?

A week, 10 days ago.
A week, 10 days ago.

6

that would be in September of 2008.

7

2008 isn't quite accurate, or not?
MR. RYAN:

8
9

So

So as of March 28,

No, I would still use a whole year

of sales, that's, I would say the industry standard.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

Okay.

So, what I'm trying

11

to get at is if there were sales in 2008 in any of these

12

areas that you looked at they wouldn't be reflected in

13

this report?

14

MR. RYAN:

No.

15

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

There been any changes

16

in the real estate market in 2008 that you're aware

17

of --

18

MR. RYAN:

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

Several.
-- generally?

Can you list

some for us?
MR. RYAN:

21

Well, most of the effects we don't

22

know yet because of the credit market crises, and how

23

that is going to affect property value remains to be

24

seen.
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1

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Could you say that if you

2

were looking at 2008 sales of residences in these areas,

3

be they in Skokie, or Glencoe, or Wilmette, or Evanston,

4

they would likely be lower?

5

MR. RYAN:

As a whole, probably, yes.

6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Just to make clear here,

7

all but one of the properties that you looked at were

8

single-story buildings.

9
10
11
12

MR. RYAN:

Is that right?

Correct.

And Wine Styles was on

Sherman, had residential above.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Right, at 1741 Sherman, and

that had some apartments above it.

13

MR. RYAN:

Correct.

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Did you happen to find out

15

whether those were condo buildings, or condo units or

16

apartments, rental units or sale units?

17

MR. RYAN:

I'm not sure, that was a newer use.

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

So if they were

19

rental units rather than condo units we wouldn't have

20

any information about whether there was any change in

21

value when those units turned over.

22

MR. RYAN:

Well, we, in conjunction with the

23

study for both Davis and Evanston, 2005 in the control

24

area there was 285 sales, and 848 in Evanston as a
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1

whole.

2006 there was 204 in the control area, 804

2

condominium sales in Evanston.

3

units in the control area and 671 in Evanston as a

4

whole.

So --

5
6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

MR. RYAN:

A four block radius of the

property.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

MR. RYAN:

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

12

What was the control area

that you're referring to?

7
8

And 2007 there was 240

Four blocks?

Right.
But we don't know how close

any of those were to the actual 1741 --

13

MR. RYAN:

They were within four blocks.

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

But beyond that we don't

15

know, we don't know if any of those were the units

16

above, across the street?

17

MR. RYAN:

You have to have a large enough

18

control area so you can have enough data to make a, an

19

accurate comparison.

20

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

I hear you, I just want to

21

know what the control area was.

And so as far, just one

22

more thing, so as far as you know you didn't look at any

23

properties where there was a liquor store that was part

24

of a condominium building?
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1

MR. RYAN:

No, I didn't find any within a

2

reasonable radius of, I think I looked, you know, as far

3

north as Glencoe and as far west as the expressway.

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

I have nothing else.

5

Again, as with Mr. Abel and Mr. Goss we need you to

6

stick around in case.

7

MR. RYAN:

8

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

Certainly.
I just had one follow-up.

The Chairman talked about potentially reduced, and you

10

agreed that there might be potentially reduced sale

11

prices during the year 2008.

12

group would you attribute those reductions in sale

13

prices to their proximity to a liquor store?

14

MR. RYAN:

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Would, in that control

No.
I have no other questions.
Thank you.
I believe I'll just sum up

18

and then we can rest.

19

the size of our property, is a permitted use at this

20

location, the legislative branch of this government has

21

indicated so.

22

less than 3,200 square feet in size.

23
24

We have a, a use that, except for

The distinction is only because we are

The legislative branch of this government has
indicated that the proposed, strike that, that the
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1

building itself in which this use is located is properly

2

zoned for commercial at the first floor and residential

3

thereafter.

4

should have known, or it should have been patently

5

obvious to them that they were buying in a building that

6

had commercial uses as a matter of law at the first

7

level.
The legislative body of this government has

8
9

Anyone who has purchased in this building

indicated that liquor is a permitted use at this

10

location.

The only thing that we are talking about here

11

is whether or not a special use should be granted

12

because this property and this use is under 3,200 square

13

feet.

14

here.

If it were over 3,200 square feet we wouldn't be

15

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

16

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

But you are.
And we are.

And that's what

17

we are seeking from this body, is a special use to be

18

allowed to provide high-end wine and spirits with sundry

19

items to the 19,000 people who work in this area and the

20

over 8,000 people who live in this area.

21

I think that the testimony is unequivocal that

22

each of the standards has been met, and so we would ask

23

a favorable vote from the Board.

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Before you sit down,
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1

counsel, there are some other questions that we normally

2

ask applicants for special uses that I'm sure you're

3

familiar with.

4

parking, but we know that there are two parking spaces

5

in the building that I believe are supposed to be

6

reserved for customers of this store.

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

One, is we talked a little bit about

Yes, sir.

Is that right?
And they're

immediately adjacent to our store.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

Okay.

And the employees

10

and other managers of the store will not be using those

11

if this is granted.

Is that correct?

12

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

13

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes, sir.
Okay.

How many people do

14

they anticipate will be working in this store at any

15

given time?

16

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

17

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

18

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

Two.
Two?
Yes.
And they will park off, off

site?

21

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes, sir.
Okay.

And are you familiar

23

with the Litter Collection Plan that is required of

24

convenience store special uses?
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1

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

We are familiar and we will

2

comply with it.

I would indicate to the Board that the,

3

I'm sorry, we're talking about litter, yes.

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

5

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

Litter, yes.
Yes.
And -Yes, we are.
And the applicant

understands that the Litter Collection Plan requires the

10

applicant to police the area around the store and

11

dispose of any litter whether it's generated by their

12

operation or not, so you understand that?

13

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes, sir.
All right.

And garbage

15

pickup, what plans or arrangements have been made for

16

garbage pickup?

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

The condominium association

18

of the commercial owners has a, a contract for the

19

removal of waste from, from the site, we would,

20

obviously, be part of that.

21

enhancement of waste, which we don't believe we will be,

22

we will be a very low generator of waste, and clearly no

23

garbage, so we would, should there be an enhanced

24

problem there would be an increase in the frequency of

And should there be any
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1

removal.

2

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Are there any dumpsters

3

that are specifically attributed to this commercial

4

space?

5

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

To the commercial --

6

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

To this specific

7

commercial space, are there any dumpsters that are

8

specifically attributed to this commercial space?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

10
11
12
13
14

Yes, there are.
And how many would that

be?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

There is one?

One and one

half yards.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

And it would be my

15

understanding that while you wouldn't necessarily be

16

created a lo of, you know, waste related to, you know,

17

consumed food products, et cetera, that there would

18

actually still, there would actually probably be a

19

likely, likely a considerable amount of waste related

20

to, or actually, hopefully recycled content related to

21

boxes and things like that that would be coming in.

22

Has your client considered how he would handle

23

the various amounts of cardboard and that sort of thing

24

that would likely be coming into the establishment?
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1

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

If there were recyclable

2

items we would provide recycling for them.

3

indicate to the Board that Quizno's was the former user,

4

and never really had a problem with their refuse.

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

I would

And I have some additional

6

questions, primarily about the applicant's other

7

activities.
As you know, counsel, the special use depends

8
9

a lot upon the undertakings of the applicant.

And at

10

the Site Plan and Appearance Review Meeting last week

11

you indicated that the applicant currently owns a

12

convenience store west of the proposed location on Davis

13

Street.

14

Street?

Would that be the Davis Pantry at 927 Davis

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

Yes, sir.
And how long has the

applicant operated that store?

18

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

12 years.
12

years.

And does he

20

personally supervise the operation of that store?

21

on-site?

22
23
24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Is he

He is on-site on a daily

basis, but not on a, 100 percent of the time.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Does he have a manager?
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1

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Yes.

2

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Is he actually working

3

a shift, if you will, or is he just stopping in to make

4

sure that, you know, things are running or handling

5

business affairs but not really, not necessarily dealing

6

with the day-to-day attention to customers?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7
8
9

He does not have a shift per

say.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

10

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

But he is on-site every day.
All right, a procedural

12

issue, I don't recall that the applicant stood up when

13

we were swearing people in.

14

you the applicant?

15

MR. ALIMOHD:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

MR. ALIMOHD:

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Were you sworn, sir?

19

Yes.

22

Okay.

Were you sworn?

Okay.

Would you swear him

No.

in, please, so -(Witness sworn.)

20
21

Are

COURT REPORTER:

Please state your name for

the record?

23

MR. ALIMOHD:

Nizar Alimohd.

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.
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the applicant has operated the Davis Pantry for 12 years

2

or so have there been any enforcement issues with the

3

City with regard to that operation?

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

6

or anything of that nature?

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

No, sir.
No tobacco sales to minors

No, sir.
Do we have any records,

Dominick?

10

MR. ARGUMEDO:

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Not aware?

Okay, thank

12

you.

13

also stated that the applicant currently operates two

14

liquor dealerships in Chicago.

15

Okay.

I'm not aware of any.

At the Site Plan and Appearance Review you

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Is that correct?

One has been sold recently,

16

but he had, previously had two liquor stores of a

17

different nature in the City of Chicago, yes.

18
19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

And, well, what,

let's take them one at a time.

20

One was on West Diversey.

21

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Is that right?

Correct.
702 West Diversey?
Yes, sir.
Did that store have a name?
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1
2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:
s), Diversey Pantry.

3
4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

And what type

It was a, basically a liquor

And did it sell a full

range of wine, beer?

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

Yes, sir.

store.

13
14

Oh, Diversey Pantry.

of store was that?

11
12

It was called Diversey

Pantry.

7

10

Miska's and Diversey

Pantry.

5
6

It was Miska's (M-i-s-k-a-

Yes.
But it wasn't the type of

store that you're proposing for -MR. J. PIKARSKI:

18

Not, it is, I'm sorry.

19

You're question, the answer is, no, it is not the same

20

at all.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

21
22

And who supervised that

store?

23

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Again, there were managers.
And how long did the
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1

applicant run that store?

2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

6

Four years?
Yes, sir.
From, say 2004 to 2008?

I'm sorry?

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

MR. ALIMOHD:

9

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

Four years.

2000 --

2000 to 2004.
2000 to 2004.

And why did

you close that store?

11

MR. ALIMOHD:

I sold it.

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

You sold it?
It was sold, yes, sir.
While you ran it from 2000

15

to 2004 did you have any enforcement issues with the

16

City of Chicago?

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

19

2427 North Clark.

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes, sir.
And what's that store

called?
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

23
24

And the other one is at

Is that correct?

20

22

No, sir.

Sorry, could you repeat

that?
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1

MR. ALIMOHD:

2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And

Basically, a liquor store

And does it then sell a

full line of wine, beer, liquor, tobacco, soft drinks?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9
10

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

11

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

store?

14

wife.

Yes, sir.
And food?
Yes, sir.
And who supervises that

Did you get that on the record?

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

S.S. Food and Liquor.

with a larger food component.

7
8

S.S. Food and Liquor.

what type of a store is that?

5
6

S.S. –

He said, my

Ms. Alimohd.
Okay.

And how long have

you operated that store?

18

MR. ALIMOHD:

Since 2004.

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Since 2004.

And since

20

2004, have you had any enforcement issues with the City

21

of Chicago?

22

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

The answer is no, sir.

23

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Do you plan to continue to

24

operate the Clark Street location after you open this
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1

one?

2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Yes, sir.
And who will run the Davis

Street store if it's, if it opens?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Mr. Alimohd will be the

person in charge and on site.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And someone else will take

care of the Davis Pantry and the S.S. Food and Liquor?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Yes, sir, as currently

structured.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Does Mr. Alimohd have a

12

personal interest in this type of venture or is this

13

more of a business, a business move?

14

personal, is this type of venture of personal interest

15

to Mr. Alimohd or is this more in a business venture

16

extension of his current, current work?

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Is this a

It is a business venture.

18

However, there is a significant interest in the wine and

19

spirits business.

20

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

You talked about,

21

earlier about someone kind of coming in and getting,

22

getting advice about the, the products that would be

23

available and that sort of thing.

24

would that be sort of a, an experience with a trained

Would that, you know,
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1

person, would that be Mr. Alimohd?

2

elaborate on that a little bit?

3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Maybe you could

As contemplated the, each

4

area of the, of the store would, would have

5

instructions, for lack of a better term, and please

6

excuse me for exhibiting my lack of knowledge of fine

7

wines.

8

potential use.

9

But each area would have indications of

There would also be books available on-site

10

and possibly even a computer component so that the

11

variables could be placed into the computer and the

12

correct, theoretically correct answer arrived at.

13

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Sir, one of our, one of

14

our final requirements is that the, is that everything,

15

everything else related to the, to the application be in

16

full compliance with the other codes and ordinances

17

that, that we have within the City or beyond that.

18

And there is strewn throughout my literature

19

here, and I could not necessarily point exactly where,

20

allegation to, to construction on a property without a

21

building permit.

22

stands as an issue with you for the City or --

Is that something that, that still

23

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

No.

24

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

-- did it ever?
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1
2

you could -MR. J. PIKARSKI:

My client, after purchasing

3

the property, began to remove the Quizno's leftovers,

4

for lack of a better term.

5

and issued a Stop Work Order, and that has been honored.

6
7
8
9
10

And the City noticed this

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

So no work has, is

currently going on on the property?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

There is no work going on,

nor has there been for a significant period of time.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

And to your knowledge

11

your client is no way, with the property or otherwise

12

with this proposal, not keeping to any other ordinances

13

that the City has?

14

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Correct.

All of the

15

ordinances of the City of Evanston will be complied

16

with, as they must be.

17

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

One last thing.

In the

18

SPARC Meeting it was mentioned about conditions of

19

approval related to up-keeping the, the atmosphere and

20

the, the level of, I think integrity might have been

21

thrown around, of the, of the establishment.

22

any more specifics discussed as far as what sort of,

23

what sort of measures would be taken to ensure that?

24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Were there

Well, two things, number
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1

one, a very practical matter, the profit generated by

2

high-end spirits and wines is significant.

3

at this location is significant.

4

anyone diminish the quality of what goes on there the

5

profit goes down on a per bottle, or per, on a per

6

bottle basis significantly.

7

The overhead

Should my, should

Also, the type of person that we intend to

8

come to this location does not want to be at a, a place

9

that serves or sells super sales and inexpensive wines.

10

It's a different, totally different market, and two

11

antagonistic markets.

12

our market, and I think Mr. Abel has talked about that

13

as well, are interested in spending the upper ranges and

14

would not want to frequent a place that catered to the

15

lower ranges.

16

The people that we intend to be

Secondly, and we did talk about this briefly

17

at the, at the meeting, I have no problem with a bi-

18

annual review of, of the, by this, well, by this Board

19

actually of the, of the site to ensure that the promises

20

made are promises kept.

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, just for the record,

22

that's not something that this Board does.

23

that if a special use is granted on the basis of

24

promised made there will be several people watching to
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1

see if the promises are kept.

2

taken care of in, in due course.

3

Anything else?

So I think that'll be

All right.

At this point

4

if the applicant is completed we have a number of

5

apparent --

6
7

Okay.

At this point we're going to take a two

minute break.
(Off the record.)

8

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

Back on the record.

As I

10

was about to say before we took a break, at this point,

11

as I mentioned earlier, property owners, or those with

12

real, those with a legal interest in real property

13

within 500 feet of the subject property at 812 Davis

14

Street have an opportunity at this point to ask

15

reasonable questions and make statements.
In order to facilitate things I'm going to

16
17

request that those people qualified to make the, to make

18

statements and ask questions at this point confine their

19

questions for the three experts who testified, Mr. Goss,

20

Mr. Abel, and Mr. Ryan, so that we can complete their

21

testimony in case we need to go on to another day with

22

this.

23
24

I have a listing of several people who have
signed up as being interested.

I don't know whether
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1

that means that you want to ask questions, if you are an

2

affected property owner or not.

3

do is ask Mr. Goss to present himself at the podium.

4

And then if there are affected property owners who wish

5

to ask questions of Mr. Goss would you please now come

6

up and ask your questions?

But what we're going to

7

I see none.

8

The next expert was Mr. Abel, would you come

9

up?

So, Mr. Goss, you are excused.

Are there any affected property owners who wish to

10

ask questions of Mr. Abel?

11

and I see none.

12

we see one?

I'm looking around the room

So, Mr. Abel, you are excused.

Come on up, sir.

And you are?

13

MR. HORNTHAL:

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15

MR. HORNTHAL:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

the street from the subject property.
MR. HORNTHAL:

18
19

David Hornthal.
And where do you live, sir?

1580 Sherman Avenue.
All right.

That's across

Is that correct?

No, that is immediately

above --

20

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

21

MR. HORNTHAL:

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

MR. HORNTHAL:

24

Oh, did

Immediately above.

-- the subject property.
My mistake, I apologize.

My question is regarding the

economic data that you quoted in terms of your supplies
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1

and demand --

2

MR. ABEL:

Yes.

3

MR. HORNTHAL:

-- showing, I believe, 10, 10's

4

of millions of dollars in demand and only one's of

5

million dollar in supply.

6

MR. ABEL:

7

MR. HORNTHAL:

8

MR. ABEL:

9
10
11

Correct.
When was this study done?

It was prepared for the City of

Evanston on November 5th of 2007 by the Goodman Williams
Group.
MR. HORNTHAL:

It seems like an

12

extraordinarily large economic gap.

13

brilliant business mind, coming from the fact that

14

Northwestern University top-ranked Kellogg School of

15

Management is within a one-mile radius, it seems highly

16

improbable that no other business mind would think to

17

capitalize on a $9 million opportunity.

18

skeptical that such a large opportunity actually exists

19

if nobody has taken opportunity in it.

20
21
22

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

And with such a, a

It makes me

I'm going to object, that's

really not a question, it's argumentative as well.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

neighbors some latitude here.

24

of your objection.

We're going to give the
I understand the nature

Do you have any more questions of
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1

Mr. Abel?

2
3

MR. HORNTHAL:

No, it was purely just on his

numbers.

4

MR. ABEL:

I think the only thing I wanted to

5

mention is that that is the total amount of money that's

6

expendable, that's the amount of money that has been

7

spent.

8

development.

9

captured, but it's going to be a substantial portion of

10

As I said, it's an opportunity gap in economic
We know the entire 10 million can't be

that.
And I know this firm, they are very reputable,

11
12

and they didn't prepare this just for beer and wine,

13

it's for every category.

14

Evanston you probably would admit there are more than

15

enough restaurants, and there's not much more

16

opportunity there.

17

around.

18

And if you're familiar with

There's just so many dollars to go

So the report is very fair, I found going

19

through it, based on my 45 years of economic

20

development.

21
22
23
24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Thank you.

person who wishes to ask a question.
MS. SADDLER:

We have another

And you are?

My name is Michelle Saddler, I

reside at 1580 Sherman Avenue.
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1

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

2

MS. SADDLER:

Okay.

And mine is not a, a planned

3

question but a simple one, I believe.

4

you because I wonder whether the name of any

5

establishment, I would imagine that the name of any

6

establishment would affect how you position it within a

7

community, and how it's positioned for economic

8

development.

9

And I ask it of

And so I'm wondering if you could, if someone

10

would please tell us what the proposed name of this

11

establishment would be?

12

MR. ABEL:

It's on the brochure right here,

13

it's the Davis Street Fine Wine and Spirits.

14

seems to me, again, from a planning standpoint an

15

economic, very to the point, Davis Street Fine Wines and

16

Spirits, it's not overdone.

17

nice job, there's a picture in here of how the, the sign

18

is positioned on the building.

19

And it

And the architect's done a

And then I think he also mentioned that they

20

are using a etched glass, which will also identify it as

21

a fine wine store.

22

you couldn't even have little, you know, sale signs in

23

the window.

24

will be no tack-up signs on the window so that the

And because of that etched glass it,

But we're willing to make a condition there
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1

entire store is going to have a certain ambiance about

2

it.

3

MS. SADDLER:

4

MR. ABEL:

5
6

Davis Street Fine Wines and --

That's correct.

and Spirits.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

I see a hand over here and

7

then another over here, come on up.

8

MS. FABIRSZAK:

9

I said Fine Wines

You are?

Hi, my name is Ursula

Fabirszak, I live at 1580 Sherman Avenue.

10

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

11

MS. FABIRSZAK:

All right.

And my question relates to the

12

investment in the property.

13

numbers on the purchase price, the rehab price, and --

14

MR. ABEL:

15

MS. FABIRSZAK:

16

That wasn't me.
Oh, it wasn't you?

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

18

MS. FABIRSZAK:

19

MR. ABEL:

All right, fair enough.

-- weren't you.

Okay.

I could answer it but I think

someone else presented it.

21

MS. FABIRSZAK:

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

MR. EVANS:

24

Then I

will defer my question if it --

17

20

You mentioned some large

Okay.
All right.

Yes, sir?

My name is Leonard Evans, I live

at 1580 Sherman, in Apartment 205.

I wanted to correct
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1

two minor errors he made, but I'd rather do it while

2

he's here and then ask him a question.

3
4

First of all, Lulu's is not adjacent to the
store.

5
6

MR. ABEL:

same, I said it's in the same complex, there is a -MR. EVANS:

7
8
9

I'm aware of that, it's in the

No, you said it was adjacent to

it.
MR. ABEL:

There's a salon in between.

10

MR. EVANS:

Okay, we agree then.

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

We get it.

12

MR. EVANS:

The other thing is, the

Okay.

13

building is 13 stories high, not seven stories high.

14

And I think on two occasions he said it was seven

15

stories high, but that's a minor point.

16

The question I have is, if this location is

17

such a great location for pedestrian traffic why did

18

Quizno's fail?

19
20
21

I'll sit down.

MR. ABEL:

Well, part of it is just what I

mentioned in -COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Sir, I know it's good

22

to answer him, but you're going to have to answer the

23

microphone instead.

24

MR. ABEL:

Right.

Again, the report
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1

identifies that the eating establishments is pretty

2

close to a very, very competitive business.

3

you look at, you know, the types of restaurants that I

4

think of, like I say, my daughter went to Northwestern,

5

and we came here there were certain restaurants we went

6

to.

7

take her to Quizno's.

8

with Quizno's but that's just it.

9

And when

I don't drive to, you know, to see my daughter and
I mean, there's nothing wrong

So, who knows?

We don't know why certain

10

people make business decisions.

11

the statistics show it's a rough business to be in.

12

then for the kind of downtown this is it's also, you

13

know, a business that, you know, might not cater to

14

people who, I'm sure the lunch crowd, but after that

15

maybe it doesn't go.

16

business decision.

17

All I can say is that
And

But again, that was an individual

And from a planning perspective in terms of

18

looking at the uses in terms of their compatibility with

19

the residents who are here from this building, I would

20

much more, from a planning standpoint, a retail fine

21

wine and spirits is going to be, have less intensity of

22

use than a Quizno's.

23
24

So if they can live with a Quizno's or live
with Lulu's, they certainly will be able to live with a
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1

very small 1,500 square foot retail operation with

2

controlled hours.

3

standpoint and, I mean, I deal with land use

4

compatibility, I mean, that's my field.

5

way that this use is less compatible than Lulu's.

6

mean, it is, it's nowhere near the intensity of land

7

use.

8

even know this particular store is here.

9

just with land use intensity and compatibility.

10
11
12

So that's what, from a planning

I

And if the residents can live with that they won't
So I'm dealing
That's

all.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Any other

questions for Mr. Abel?

13

MS. BERNSTEIN:

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15

MS. BERNSTEIN:

16

And there is no

I think this goes to -You are?

My name is Shellie Bernstein,

and I live at 1580 Sherman Avenue, Unit 503.

17

As far as the parking across the street, it's

18

very difficult, I know because my kids come and use it.

19
20

But it's not like an in and out kind of parking.

You

have to go to the fourth floor, and then you --

21

MR. ABEL:

I parked there this evening.

22

MS. BERNSTEIN:

Right.

But if you want to buy

23

a bottle of wine I don't think that someone is going to

24

go into that parking lot, park their car, walk across
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1

the street, it's wintertime.

2

people may stop their car, run in, run out, and we have

3

a terrible congestion problem there.

4

MR. ABEL:

It's just, I think that

But you missed my point, is that as

5

I went through all the studies, and I walked this area

6

four or five times specifically for this, but then other

7

times just because my wife shops in the area, this site

8

is going to get its major use, 90 percent of the people

9

who buy in this store will be pedestrians, they are

10

already on the street flowing back and forth.

11

I said, there is an occasional person who

12

works west and is going to drive to a single family

13

closer, and on Hindman or someplace, and if he wants to

14

stop, or she, they will be able to find a parking space.

15
16

It may not be right in front of it, but I have always
found parking, yeah, and I --

17

MS. BERNSTEIN:

18

MR. ABEL:

You're lucky, you're lucky.

I get those, I get that from women

19

all them in every community I work with, that's the

20

first complaint, they can't park.

21

willing to work out but they won't walk a block to the

22

store they want to go to.

23

but --

24

MS. BERNSTEIN:

It's because they're

That always bothers me.

No,

Okay.
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1
2

MR. ABEL:
everybody.

3
4

MS. BERNSTEIN:

MR. ABEL:

You have to be able to park.

But

let's --

7

MS. BERNSTEIN:

8

MR. ABEL:

9

I have one other thing that

I'd like --

5
6

-- and it's men too, it's

-- to bring up.

-- about that.

Then you can go

across the street if you want to, pull into the garage

10

and park for free.

11

trying --

That's the only point I was

MS. BERNSTEIN:

12

You can park for free and it's

13

a, and it's very nice but I don't think that people will

14

use it for a quick stop.
MR. ABEL:

15
16

And I said, those are only the five

percent --

17

MS. BERNSTEIN:

18

MR. ABEL:

Yeah.

-- might do that.

I'm saying, I'm

19

willing to maybe go as high as 98 percent of the people

20

that come into to that store are pedestrians or people

21

working, on their lunch hour.

22

I worked downtown right by the Italian Village

23

our office was, and I can tell you that workers, and you

24

can ask any of the people here, when you have a lunch
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1

hour and you're walking around, and you want to bring

2

some wine home that night, or it's Friday night, you're

3

going to go in there.

4

This store, that's what I'm saying, it has the

5

best location of any store, small store like that, in

6

this area because of the pedestrians.

7

very small amount that's parking, I was only addressing

8

the parking issue.

9

then if you really get desperate you go into the parking

Then you add the

And there are on-street parking, and

10

garage.

And I'm, I'll agree with you, most people don't

11

like parking garages, they avoid them.
MS. BERNSTEIN:

12

One other question, and it has

13

to do with the same thing.

14

small businesses, that makes our country great.

15

am concerned, very concerned because of the time of

16

operation.

17

know, get off the train, buy your wine during the day,

18

take a walk, buy your wine, I see no reason for this

19

kind of operation to be open after 8:00 p.m.
MR. ABEL:

21

MS. BERNSTEIN:

22

MR. ABEL:

24

10:00.

But I

I believe that this could be a walking, you

20

23

First of all, I believe in

How long is Lulu's open?
That's dinner, I'm --

No, they're open, I think, until

That's beside the point.
MS. BERNSTEIN:

We --

It's just --
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1

MR. ABEL:

2

MS. BERNSTEIN:

3

We're willing to discuss hours.
-- a concern, it's just a

concern.

4

MR. ABEL:

Yeah, but if, but if I'm correct

5

and Lulu's is open until 10 then, pardon, 11:00 then why

6

should a retailer next door have to close at 8:00?

7

mean -MS. BERNSTEIN:

8
9

I

Because people who are going

to dinner sit down and they have a quiet dinner inside

10

the establishment.

The kind of people that you will get

11

at a liquor store after 8:00 p.m. are there for one

12

thing.

13

MR. ABEL:

14

MS. BERNSTEIN:

15

MR. ABEL:

16

MS. BERNSTEIN:

17
18
19
20

No, I disagree with you -Well, it's my --

-- based on my --- it's my opinion, it's just

my opinion.
MR. ABEL:

Okay.

My opinion is that that

won't happen.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

This is not a

21

debate, you have an opportunity to ask questions.

22

you have anymore question questions?

23

MS. BERNSTEIN:

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Do

No.
Okay.

Well, then you can
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1

make your statement at a later time.

2

questions for Mr. Abel?

3

more.

4
5
6
7
8
9

Okay.

Any other

Going once, twice, I see no

Mr. Ryan, does, we'll excuse Mr. Abel.

Mr. Ryan, anyone have questions for Mr. Ryan?
the affected property owners?
MR. ARBETTAR:

Any of

Yes, sir?

Charles Arbettar, 1580 Sherman.

With all due respect, Mr. Ryan, I'm certainly far from
an appraisal expert, but I, in my opinion, think your

10

report is fatally flawed in that there are no other fine

11

wine and liquor facilities or liquor stores in a high-

12

rise condominium in your control area, and maybe there's

13

a reason for that.

14

So for you to apply a control area and

15

extrapolate the fact that there was no impact on

16

property values is not correct as applied to this

17

particular situation.

18

situation, and I don't think you're able to state that

19

property values are not impacted in this situation.

There is no comps for this

20

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

21

MR. ARBETTAR:

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Is that a question?

No, that's an opinion.
Okay.

Well, we're going to

23

limit people to questions at this point.

24

questions --
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2

MR. ARBETTAR:

But if he can respond to my

statement?

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

you have a response to the statement?

5

MR. RYAN:

Well, we'll ask him.

Do

Well, I've been doing this for 28

6

years, and there is only one methodology to complete a

7

study like this, and that was the methodology employed

8

in my report.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

9
10

I have a question for

Mr. Ryan.

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

12

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

You said it was a four

13

block area that you studied with each of your control

14

groups?

15

MR. RYAN:

Right.

16

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

The location of 1741

17

Sherman Avenue, is that within four blocks of the

18

subject property?

19

MR. RYAN:

Yes.

20

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22

for Mr. Ryan?

23

Ryan, you're excused as well.

24

Thank you.

Okay.

Any other questions

Going once, twice, I see none.

All right.

Okay, Mr.

Having disposed of the questions
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to the expert witnesses, who are now excused, we will

2

permit the, any affected property owners to offer any

3

testimony or statements that they wish to do so, if they

4

wish to do so.

5

And just to make the procedures a little

6

smoother I'll ask that any affected property owner who

7

plans to, or think they may want to make a statement, to

8

please be sworn at this time.

9

be sworn if you intend to or may make a statement?
(Witnesses sworn.)

10
11

So would you all rise and

MS. MONROE:

Good evening, my name is Merle

12

Monroe, I live at 1580 Sherman Avenue, which is the

13

residential address of the property of the proposed

14

convenience liquor store.

15

of the Optima Towers Residential Condominium

16

Association, which has 103 units.

17

I'm currently the President

I'm here tonight with many residents of the

18

building, in fact everyone who is not here with the

19

applicant, with the exception of one other person, is a

20

resident of our building.

21

opportunity to express our real concerns about such a

22

store being located in a residential building.

23
24

And we all appreciate the

I know that you have also received letters
from those unable to be here, which voiced their
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1

opposition as well.

2

We understand that, as has been stated many

3

times tonight, according to the owner or his

4

representative that 90 percent of the business will be

5

liquor sales.

6

toddlers as well as school-aged children, grandchildren,

7

lots of grandchildren visit regularly.
Our concern relate directly to the City of

8
9

Our residents include elderly and

Evanston standards for special uses.

We do not believe

10

that this type of store is in keeping with the planned

11

development to diversify and upgrade the core part of

12

the City now being considered by the City Council.
There are, as we've heard, there are two other

13
14

convenience stores in the immediate area, one is 7-11,

15

is almost directly across the street and is open 24

16

hours.

17

proposed store.

18

convenience store, and I have some photos of the display

19

windows that give you an idea of the sort of signage

20

that we could be subjected to.

21

of Davis Pantry that I can enter, which I --

The other one is a block to the west of the

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22
23
24

The applicant is associated with that

So I have some pictures

Okay.

Well, let's start

with me.
MS. MONROE:

Okay.
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2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And you're handing me two

photographs.

3

MS. MONROE:

Um-hmm.

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And let me ask you this,

5

did you take these photographs?

6

MS. MONROE:

7

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8

MS. MONROE:

9

Do you know who did?

I believe that one of the

homeowners here did.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10
11

No.

All right.

Evans?

12

MS. MONROE:

13

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Mr. Evans.
Mr. Evans, would you come

14

up to the podium, please?

15

that appear to depict the Davis Pantry.

16

these photographs yourself?

I am holding two photographs

17

MR. EVANS:

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

19
20
21

That's Mr.

Did you take

Yes, I did.
And approximately when did

you do that?
MR. EVANS:

I don't know.

This has been going

on for so long, last spring sometime probably.

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

MR. EVANS:

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Last spring of 2008?

Yes.
And do they accurately
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1

portray the condition of the property at that time?

2

MR. EVANS:

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

Yes.

MR. ARGUMEDO:

6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

7

MR. ARGUMEDO:

Are we starting at 1?

Then that would be Opposition

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:
MR. EVANS:

10

photographs I took.

1 and 2.

She's going to show you some other
Do you want me to --

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

MR. EVANS:

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15

MS. MONROE:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

Yes.

Exhibits 1 and 2.

9

11

We'll receive

them then, and we'll mark them Opposition Exhibits --

5

8

All right.

Yes.

Do you want me to come up?
Why don't --

-- a little bit later.

So --

What have you got?

All

right.

18

MS. MONROE:

They come up later, they're --

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

We'll came back later,

20

okay, then I don't want to break your cadence here, but

21

all right.

22

pictures of the Davis Pantry.

23
24

So we've admitted Opposition 1 and 2,

MS. MONROE:

I understand that promises and

concessions have been made, or floated here, but we
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don't really know that they're going to be met, and we

2

can only go by what is stated in the application and

3

what we've seen from other businesses nearby, other

4

business nearby that this applicant is associated with.

5

Also, as we've heard tonight there's a liquor

6

store at 1019 Davis, which is two blocks to the west of

7

the proposed store, and a specialty wine store at 1741

8

Sherman Avenue, a block and a half to the north.

9

wine, as you've recognized, is also available at Whole

10

Foods and World Market.

11

licenses within a three mile radius of Sherman and

12

Davis.

Fine

There are more than 20 liquor

Residents of this are don't need a convenience

13
14

store for our convenience.

The existing 7-11 and CVS

15

fills that bill, and liquor is certainly not hard to

16

obtain.

17

of the target clientele the applicant has missed by a

18

mile.

If residents in our building are a large part

The application for the special use states,

19
20

and I quote, employees within the district will also

21

look to patronize the store either in transit to home or

22

for enjoyment of products within the CBD, end of quote.
Where, I ask, in the CBD will they enjoy these

23
24

products?

Walking around?

There are only two
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1

restaurants in the area that do not have liquor

2

licenses.

3

street from the existing liquor store at 1019 Davis.

4

And one of those is directly across the

We certainly believe that this type of store

5

will diminish the value of our property and the property

6

of the neighborhood.

7

vehicles, and the proposed long hours of operation are

8

all detrimental to the quality of life for our

9

residents.

10
11

Noise from customers, delivery

And that's a large part of this, that this

is a quality of life issue for us.
There are master bedrooms and outdoor terraces

12

directly above the entrance to the proposed store.

13

There are also safety issues, our residents, many of

14

them single women, must walk through the commercial

15

parking area to enter and exit our back entrance, which

16

is immediately adjacent to the proposed store.

17

Davis Street is, of course, a very busy

18

street, especially during the day.

This type of store

19

will add additional traffic, both customer and delivery

20

traffic, you've heard some of this already.

21

cause undue traffic congestion, some customers will

22

double park and run in to buy a bottle wine, customers

23

of an existing restaurant in the building already double

24

park to run in and pick up take-out orders.
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1

The property does have two parking spaces

2

assigned to it in the commercial area, not six as was

3

originally stated in the application.

4

the other stores in the building, and I know they've

5

made promises and concessions, but what we observe every

6

day is that the owners and employees of those stores use

7

those spaces, and the same cars are there every day all

8

day long.

9

make conjectures.

10

But if it's like

So based on our experience, know we can just

As I said, I understand promises were made

11

about the, use of the parking spots.

There is no other

12

available parking on the side either for your paid,

13

clearly there is insufficient parking available for this

14

type of high volume operation.

15

Delivery trucks are an even bigger problem.

16

We already deal with delivery trucks that service the

17

other commercial establishments in the building and

18

neighboring buildings as well.

19

just to the west, I think it's address is 820 Davis,

20

they get lots of deliveries, FedEx, UPS, all day long.

21

So it's not just the commercial in our area, across the

22

street as well at the Sherman Plaza.

There's a building at,

23

Since there's no other place for these trucks

24

to park they double park on the, on the, either side of
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1

our garage entrance, and I have pictures of this in a

2

moment, making it extremely difficult to pull out onto

3

Davis Street.

4

block part of the garage entrance making it almost

5

possible to see incoming, oncoming traffic and incoming

6

traffic, and we are fortunate that we've had only near

7

misses and no accidents yet involving a pedestrian or

8

other vehicle.

Many times these truck block, trucks

9

So I have seven pictures, five of them were

10

taken by Mr. Evans, and two of them were taken by me,

11

okay.

12

immediately at our garage entrance.

13

to see, I'm going to lose this here, and what you'll see

14

is some of the pictures are dated so this is something

15

we've been looking at over a long period of time.

16

And what these pictures are, they are of the area

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And you'll be able

All right.

Let me, just

17

for purposes of identification and authentication, can

18

you give me the ones that Mr. Evans took and we'll bring

19

him back for this purpose?

20

MS. MONROE:

Two more, just a minute.

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Come on back, Mr. Evans.

22

All right, are these the pictures that you took?

23

going to mark them 3, 3 is a picture of a I Love MT

24

Dairy Truck.
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1
2

MR. EVANS:

Yeah, well, I guess one of them

was taken at an earlier time.

3

MS. MONROE:

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

5

second.

Right.

Did you take this picture?

6

MR. EVANS:

7

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8

MR. EVANS:

9
10
11
12
13
14

Yes.

the pictures, I'm sorry.

But the later ones were

taken -MS. MONROE:

These have dates on them and they

clearly show when they were taken.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

So let's look at Number 3,

that's the -MR. EVANS:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

MR. EVANS:

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

All right, I'll --

So I was wrong about when I took

15

19

I'll ask you, just a

I think I took that.
Did you take that picture?

Yes, yes, I did.

Yes, I did.

Approximately when did you

take that picture?
MR. EVANS:

Well, I think it was this spring,

21

but I, over the years I've taken pictures regularly,

22

it's an ongoing problem.

23

my, I have very detailed records of everything, so if

24

it's important I can tell you exactly when I took it to

So I have to go back and check
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1

the day and probably the time.

2
3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

MR. EVANS:

To the best of my knowledge that

was last spring, but I could be wrong about that.

6
7

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

And does that

accurately depict the --

8

MR. EVANS:

9

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Oh, yes, yes.

10

MR. EVANS:

11

MS. MONROE:

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

Well, tell us,

to the best of your recollection, when you took it?

4
5

All right.

-- condition of the --

Yes, very accurately.
All day long.
-- of the property at that

time?

14

MR. EVANS:

All day long, yes.

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Mr. Chairman, if I can

16

approach for a moment, if we can just have a look at the

17

pictures as well?

18
19
20
21
22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

We'll give you a chance as

soon as we -All right, Number 4 is a, it appears to be a
picture of a Pepsi -MR. EVANS:

That was taken from my terrace,

23

that was taken from my terrace, yes.

24

entrance is right here.
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1
2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

MR. EVANS:

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

5

MR. EVANS:

6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, it says when it was taken.

And did you take it

yourself?
MR. EVANS:

9

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes, I did.
And does it accurately

portray --

11

MR. EVANS:

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

Which is?

April 2006?

8

10

And was that

taken --

3

7

Okay.

Oh, yes, yes.
-- the condition at the

time?

14

MR. EVANS:

Very accurately.

15

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Picture No. 5

16

is another picture of the I Love MT Dairy truck.

17

you take that picture?

18

MR. EVANS:

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

MR. EVANS:

21
22
23
24

Did

Yes, I did.
Approximately when?

Again, I think that one was last

spring.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

Does it

accurately -MR. EVANS:

Yes, it does.
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2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

-- depict the condition at

the time?

3

MR. EVANS:

Yes.

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Number 6 is

5

another picture, it looks like the same dairy truck.

6

Did you take that picture?
MR. EVANS:

7
8
9
10
11

day, yes.

Yes, those were all taken the same

And that's an accurate portrayal.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:
MR. EVANS:

All right.

I was particularly trying to show

how it blocks the view of people leaving the garage.

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

counsel take a look at pictures of --

14

MS. MONROE:

15

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

16

MS. MONROE:

17

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

18
19

I'm sorry.

All right.

So we'll let

I have two more that I took.
-- 3, 4, 5, and 6.

And I have some more that I took.
Well, what about this one?

Come back, Mr. Evans, one more.

I'm

showing you Picture No. 7, which --

20

MR. EVANS:

That says 3/2006, yes.

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22

MR. EVANS:

23

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

24

MR. EVANS:

And did you take it --

Yes, I did.
-- at that time?

Yes, I did.
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2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

portray the situation at that time?

3

MR. EVANS:

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

5

Yes, it certainly does.
All right.

Okay, counsel,

here's three --

6

MS. MONROE:

7

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8

And does it accurately

I have two more.
We'll let him look at these

first.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

MS. MONROE:

10

Thank you.

Okay.

These are two pictures

11

that I took in August of 2008 at about, well, mid-day

12

around 11:00 or so.

13

same truck, these were taken from across the street on

14

the north side of Davis looking into our garage

15

entrance.

16

food and has extensions blocking a good portion of our

17

garage entranceway and exit, it's the only exit into,

18

only entrance or exit into the garage.

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And these are two pictures of the

And you can see that the truck is delivering

All right.

20

those as Exhibits 8 and 9.

21

a, a truck labeled Asian Foods.

22

chance --

23
24

MS. MONROE:

We will mark

And in both cases they show
So I'll give counsel a

In other pictures they, they

didn't get entered in exactly the right sequence, but
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basically some of them show double parked --

2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes.

Ms. Monroe, we'll

3

give counsel a minute to look at the pictures and see if

4

he has any objections.

5
6

MR. T. PIKARSKI:
I have no objection.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

7
8

Subject to cross examination

Okay, we'll admit them,

thank you.
Okay, now you can go ahead.

9

MS. MONROE:

10

Okay.

The way that they were

11

entered wasn't exactly in the sequence that I had

12

prepared them, but basically -CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

Well, you want to rearrange

14

them?

This is your story so you can tell it any way you

15

want.

Take whatever time you need.
MS. MONROE:

16

Okay.

The numbers 4 and 7 show

17

delivery trucks double parked on Davis, okay.

Then the

18

MT Dairy truck pictures 5 and 6 show, well, actually

19

wait.

20

view of the garage entrance.

21

there's not only the parking to the west, excuse me, to

22

the east, but to the west as, also.

23

trucks, this is the only picture that shows something to

24

the west.

We'll just go with number five, shows a longer
And it is typical that

We often have two
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Then pictures 3 and 6, the MT Dairy Truck,

2

they, they're taken more from the point of view of a

3

car, being a passenger or a driver in a car exiting the

4

garage, and what we actually see when we pull out of our

5

garage every single day, we see trucks there, just, I

6

mean, when I, I'm, I often leave during the hours of 10

7

to 2 in a vehicle, and this is very, very, very typical,

8

and I know there's 20 people here that will say the same

9

thing.

10

The last two pictures, 8 and 9, I took these

11

from across the street about 11:00 on a weekday, I was

12

returning from a walking errand in the Central Business

13

District.

14

with the way that not only the truck but the extensions

15

and so on were blocking our garage entryway.

16

very typical, any day, any day you can come out there.

And I just was really kind of overwhelmed

17

Do I give these to --

18

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

19

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Do you want your notes

under --

22

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23

MS. MONROE:

24

Yes, they're ours now,

thank you.

20
21

Again,

Your pad.

I'm sorry.

I have is the hours of operation.

Okay.

The next focus

We don't feel that
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1

there is a need for such long hours of operation, nor is

2

there a market for the intended inventory.

3

Most of the inventory of the store, excuse me,

4

most of the inventory of the store that's most similar

5

to that being proposed, Wine Styles, their inventory is

6

between 10 and $25.

7

SPARC, our applicant's representative at SPARC stated

8

that the inventory of the proposed store would begin at

9

a price point of $25.

The applicant's representative at

Now tonight we've heard as low as eight, we've

10
11

heard beer, we've heard a lot of things.

So I'm not

12

even sure what the, $25 was repeated several times and

13

should be part of the SPARC minutes.

14

10, I don't know, I really don't know what the floor is.

Tonight, eight,

Every successful business in our building,

15
16

there are a number of successful businesses came there

17

with an already established customer base, either

18

because they came from another location in Evanston,

19

like Lulu's, or the tailor, the cleaners, they all had

20

businesses nearby and then moved to our building, so

21

they had a customer base.

22

a high level of name recognition like -- is part of a

23

franchise.

24

Or they had a franchise with

So for all of the above reasons the proposed
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1

operation will certainly have an increased negative

2

cumulative effect on existing traffic and congestion in

3

the immediate area.

4

Additionally, we have concerns about the

5

credibility of the application, and I have a number of

6

statements.

7

area was begun without appropriate permits and was

8

stopped by the City of Evanston.

9

installed.

10

The renovation was begun, renovation of the

There was shelving

What was done in no way resembles the

drawings presented here, not even close.
Will the work be done to date be torn out?

11

I

12

have, you know, just questions about all of that and the

13

fact that it was done without appropriate permits.
The applicant's training is another area of

14
15

question.

16

experience.

17

this area.

18

the application being involved in the sale of wine,

19

spirits, and liquors, end of quote, rather than any kind

20

of certified training as a sommelier.

21

describes the same applicant as being able to recommend

22

expensive wines to a high-end clientele.

23
24

We heard at SPARC that he had seven years of
Today, tonight, four years of experience in
And the years of experience are quote, from

The application

The applicant has, last week it was three
other businesses, now it's two other businesses, a
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1

convenience store and a liquor dealership in Chicago,

2

and you raised pertinent questions about that.

3

application states that he, quote, will be physically

4

present at the site during the overwhelming majority of

5

the hours of operation in order to provide supervision

6

of employees and consultation for customers, end of

7

quote.

8

my question is, how is that possible with the other

9

business interests and the long hours of operations?

Yet, the

And I really don't know how that's possible.

So

We are concerned, as was SPARC, that should

10
11

the high-end inventory fail to sell there would be

12

erosion downward to merchandise more typical of a

13

convenience and/or lesser quality liquor store.
I know that they're talking a lot about the

14
15

target and the customers they're targeting, but you

16

don't always get the customers you want, you get the

17

customers you get.

18

the students, you're the teacher, you work with the

19

students you have.

20

customers to say, yes, they are high-end, they're going

21

to be high-end, they were high-end, there's no control

22

over that.

23
24

Like a teacher doesn't get to pick

And there is no way to control

If the application is for the sale of fine
wines, spirits, and liquors why does the phrase, quote,
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1

desire for packaged liquor sales in the Central Business

2

District appear on page three of the application

3

attachment as part of answer 5B?

4

four part of answer 5C states, quote, the sale of

5

packaged liquor is entirely complimentary to the

6

surrounding high density residential buildings.

7

there more than one mention of packaged liquor as

8

opposed to mention of fine wine and spirits?

9

Similarly, on page

Why is

And then there's, there was a photographic

10

rendering at SPARC, I just want to come around and see

11

if it's here.

12

saw and is here tonight shows beer throughout the

13

coolers on the rear wall almost 100 percent.

14

A photographic rendering that, that we

As the residential condominium association we

15

have consistently enjoyed a positive relationship with

16

the commercial association in the building.

17

operating there is a dry cleaner, a tea shop, a

18

restaurant, and a beauty salon.

19

units have been occupied by a fast food restaurant and a

20

cell phone store.

21

relationships with all of these types of businesses on

22

matters that include trash pickup, maintenance, access

23

to the building, fire and safety issues, and signs.

24

Currently

In the past, retail

We have had effective working

There are 18 permitted uses in the D3
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1

District, which would be welcome viable additions to our

2

building and the area.

3

I do want to thank you for the opportunity, I

4

know it's been a long evening for all of us to share our

5

concerns and questions with you.

6

zoning and related procedures exist to balance the needs

7

of commercial endeavors with those of residents.

8

We hope you will take our concerns and

9

We understand that

questions seriously when making your decision and vote

10

to deny this application, which is incompatible with the

11

character of the immediate area, which will increase

12

street congestion, and present safety and quality of

13

life issues.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

14

Thank you.

At this point,

15

Ms. Monroe, you have the opportunity, if you wish, to

16

ask questions of the applicant, and then the applicant

17

has an opportunity to ask questions of you.

18

go first if you have any questions of the applicant.
MS. MONROE:

19

So you can

I do have questions about the,

20

the type of merchandise and what, you know, we've heard

21

many, many different price points.

22

tell us?

23
24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

And what can you

Well, first of all, let me

indicate that the price points that I talked about at
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1

the previous meeting --

2
3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

The Site Plan and

Appearance Review?

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Correct.

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

SPARC?

6

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Were representative.

The --

Were what, sir?
Were representative.

I

9

believe that, not I believe, I know that our minimum

10

numbers are in the 10 dollar area, with most of them

11

being upward toward 25 and then significant numbers over

12

25.

13

MS. MONROE:

The areas then of, the area of

14

supervision.

15

overwhelming majority of time, those are the words in

16

the application, if he's running two other businesses?

17

How can the applicant be present the

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Well, as I've indicated to

18

the Board, both of the businesses that the client is

19

involved in have management, and, of course, his wife is

20

the manager of the Chicago outlet.

21

is four blocks away.

22

MS. MONROE:

And the other outlet

Is there, is this an independent

23

and, independent proprietorship and is there a

24

connection with a chain, or franchise, or some operation
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1

like that?

2
3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:
entity.

4
5

MS. MONROE:

Those are my questions,

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

Now they have

an opportunity to reasonably question you.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8
9

Okay.

thank you.

6
7

No, this is an independent

Yeah, Ms. Monroe, you have

indicated that you are the President of the Condominium

10

Association.

I take it you are not here in a

11

representative capacity, are you?

12

MS. MONROE:

Well, I am.

13

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Okay.

When was the meeting

14

concerning this entity held, when were the notices given

15

out, when was the vote taken, and what was the vote that

16

enfranchised you to be here in a representative

17

capacity?

18

MS. MONROE:

Okay.

This process of this

19

application has gone on for quite some time.

20

prior to last November my predecessor who was the

21

president at that time made preparations to appear.

22

came to SPARC last year, and three of --

23

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And my,

We

When -Let her finish, please.
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1
2

MS. MONROE:

To answer your question, no,

there was not a formal meeting with --

3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

So, that you are not

4

enfranchised by the condominium association to be here

5

in a representative capacity?

6

MS. MONROE:

Not in a, not as a result of a

7

formal vote.

8

people have requested that I -MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

MS. MONROE:

10
11

-- play this role and have given

MR. J. PIKARSKI:
we, you really mean, me.
MS. MONROE:

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

18

So that when you speak of,

Is that correct?

14

17

I would --

me that role, informally.

12
13

We've had many informal conversations, and

No.
Okay, okay.
We take your point,

counsel.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Okay.

You indicated many

19

times that you're calling this a convenience store.

20

What do you mean by a convenience store?

21

MS. MONROE:

I mean with the City of Evanston

22

means by it, which is a retail good foods establishment

23

that's less than 3,200 feet, square feet.

24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Do you also mean that, does
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1

this include a, an outlet for fine wines and liquor that

2

would have a 90 percent of its sales in fine wines and

3

liquor?

4

MS. MONROE:

It's however the City of Evanston

5

defines it, because our declaration says that stores

6

must meet the zoning requirements of the City of

7

Evanston, that's the only limitation placed on them.

8

that's my limitation as well.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

Okay.

You made, you made a

10

statement about 20 liquor licenses in the vicinity.

11

many of those are restaurants?

12

MS. MONROE:

13

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

So

How

Most of them, most all of them.
Thank you.

You made a

14

statement about the enjoyment of fine wines and liquors

15

on lunch hours, or the purchase of -MS. MONROE:

16
17
18

I didn't say anything about lunch

hours.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Well, you indicated how can

19

people who are employees consume liquor in their

20

employment capacity.

21
22
23
24

MS. MONROE:

No, I did not say anything of

that nature at all.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Well, anyway, is it true

that there are significant numbers of office parties
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1

throughout the year?

2

MS. MONROE:

3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

4

MS. MONROE:

Yes, I worked in, I was a teacher

and school administrator for 33 years.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7
8

Have you ever worked for a

living?

5
6

I have no knowledge of that.

Did they ever have any

office parties at your school?
MS. MONROE:

9

I, it's immaterial.

10

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

11

MS. MONROE:

12

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

No, it's not.

I don't see the relevance.
Okay.

You've produced

13

several pictures of, that are pictures of frozen times

14

an places.

15

depiction?

Now, is this a 24 hours seven day a week

16

MS. MONROE:

No.

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Thank you.

If those

18

offending trucks are there wouldn't it be appropriate

19

for the president of the condominium associated to call

20

the police?

21

MS. MONROE:

Perhaps.

22

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

You made a to do about our

23

calling packaged goods liquor.

Couldn't fine wines and

24

spirits be generically called packaged goods liquor?
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1
2

MS. MONROE:
of it.

3

That would not be my definition

I don't know, I don't know.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

You don't, the answer is,

4

you don't know, okay, well, thank you.

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

6

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7

Okay.

MS. MONROE:

9

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

I'm sorry?
How many units are there in

the building?

11

MS. MONROE:

12

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

13

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

14

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

15

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

16
17

How many units are

there in the building?

8

10

One more.

103.
Okay, thank you.
Thank you, Ms. Monroe.
Actually --

We have some questions for

you.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

How many parking spaces

18

are in the building and how many of those are dedicated

19

to the commercial uses?

20

MS. MONROE:

Well, we have a five-story

21

parking garage that is separated by an overhead garage

22

door for the residents only.

23

one or two parking spaces.

24

separate, separated residential area only.

And each unit has either
So I don't, and that's
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1

In the commercial area, I would have to be

2

taking a guess here, but I'm thinking about maybe 18,

3

that's probably high, it's probably about 12, 12, maybe

4

six on each.

5

and there's probably about 12, yeah, about six on each

6

side.

7

and the others are all reserved for the other

8

businesses.

And two of those are reserved for this business,

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

9
10

There are two sides of the drive aisle,

Is that taken care of

through signage at the --

11

MS. MONROE:

I'm sorry?

12

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Is that taken care of

13

through signage at the front of the parking space, or

14

how are those delineated?
MS. MONROE:

15
16

I'm sorry, I didn't hear your

question.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

17

The, I was asking

18

whether or not the allotment or designation of each

19

parking spot was taken care through signage at the front

20

of the parking spot or -MS. MONROE:

21
22

yes.

23

building opened.

24

-- head of the parking space,

And that was established by the developer when the

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

I have a couple
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1

questions.

2

making deliveries.

3

being made for a business at 812 Davis?

4
5

You've produced many pictures of trucks
How many of those deliveries were

MS. MONROE:

Well, I don't know, I know what

the applicant --

6

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

So in other words

7

you're saying that you've taken pictures of trucks

8

making deliveries to existing businesses, this is not

9

necessarily indicative of the fact that this particular

10

business is going to have any major impact?
MS. MONROE:

11

Well, I was looking for something

12

in the area of cumulative effect, you know.

13

there, there are trucks --

14

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

15

MS. MONROE:

16

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

We are

And --

-- and this would add -And what type of a

17

business would you like to see go in there that's a

18

commercial business that would have no --

19

MS. MONROE:

Well, there are 18 --

20

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

-- that have no, let me

21

finish my question, please, that have no delivery trucks

22

coming in?

23

MS. MONROE:

24

they're fine with me.

There are 18 permitted uses, and
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1

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Those trucks coming to

2

the 18 permitted uses don't bother you in the cumulative

3

effect?

4

MS. MONROE:

5

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

6

question I'm asking you though.

7

MS. MONROE:

8

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

9

They're permitted uses, I --

I don't --

MS. MONROE:

11

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Yes.
-- and adding to the

cumulative effect.

13

MS. MONROE:

14

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

15

You're making a big

deal about delivery trucks coming --

10

12

But that's not the

Um-hmm.
Any business that comes

in there would have delivery trucks, would it not?
MS. MONROE:

16

Well, some of the permitted uses

17

are offices, and, you know, like fraternal

18

organizations, and -COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

19
20

FedEx deliveries, these sorts of things?
MS. MONROE:

21
22
23
24

And offices don't get

Well, not like, not with the

frequency.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Okay.

And when FedEx

deliveries are made to your residence, where do the
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1

trucks park?

2

MS. MONROE:

3

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

4

On Sherman Avenue.

they have a loading zone.

5

MS. MONROE:

6

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

7

10

MS. MONROE:

15

They're generally in parking

Avenue side.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Okay.

I think that's

all my questions.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13
14

So they park on the

spaces on that side, it's less congested on the Sherman

11
12

There is no loading zone.

street and add to the cumulative effect of traffic?

8
9

On the street or do

Thank you.

Any other

questions?
COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

I have a couple of

16

questions, Matt and Lori asked some of them that I

17

wanted to ask, so that's good.

18

buy at 1580?

19

MS. MONROE:

Why did you originally

Well, I had lived in Evanston

20

before, not immediately before, but many years ago.

21

my husband had a private practice in Evanston a few

22

years prior to the time we bought.

23

viable community, it was on its way up, we knew that,

24

that there was going to be lots of development in the

And

And we felt it was a

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES

(630) 894-9389

116
10/7/08

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

City.

2

would be some of the reasons.

3

And good public transportation, businesses, those

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

So would it be fair to

4

say that you bought there because you, you like being in

5

sort of that kind of downtown area where there's access

6

to transportation and access to, to different types of

7

businesses, and you can walk around do your errands,

8

that sort of thing?
MS. MONROE:

9

Libraries.

10

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

11

MS. MONROE:

12

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

13

enjoying living there?

Music, all of those things.

MS. MONROE:

15

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

19

Yes.
So that's, okay,

great, thanks.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17
18

Do you, are you

I mean, has that been --

14

16

Sure.

Monroe?

Any other questions for Ms.

Counsel?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Just one.

Ms. Monroe,

20

you've indicated that permitted uses, you would be

21

accepting of any permitted uses.

22

MS. MONROE:

23
24

Is that correct?

Well, I'm saying that there are

18 permitted uses that are acceptable, yes.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Okay.

Are you cognizant of
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1

the fact that if this use had 3,200 square feet in it it

2

would be a permitted use?

3

MS. MONROE:

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

6
7

Monroe.

Yes, I'm aware of that.

Anyone else?
MR. EVANS:

Okay, thank you.
Okay.

Thank you, Ms.

Mr. Evans?
You'll excuse me, many of the

8

points I have here have been covered, so I'll try to

9

skip through what I have to say, I may be a little bit

10
11

incoherent as a result.
I live directly over the store at 812 Davis

12

Street, and the thing I'm most concerned with the

13

operating hours.

14

exceed those of most businesses in the immediate area,

15

which are closed by 10:00 p.m. or earlier.

16

Now, the proposed operating hours

Let me admit that Lulu's is open until 11:00

17

on weekends, which they are proposing to do, but Lulu's

18

is not directly under anybody's master bedroom.

19

the door, front door of this thing is directly under my

20

master, our master bedroom.

21

This,

There's little foot traffic at that time, as

22

no one would be buying wine to accompany a meal at a

23

nearby restaurant.

24

large portion of the clientele being pedestrians who

Now, since they're talking about a
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1

work in the area, I am very puzzled about why they need

2

to be open until 11:00 on weekends.

3

1741 Davis Street closes at 8:00, except on holidays

4

when it stays open until 9:00.

5

that there is very little business after 6:30 --

6
7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

10

The owner has told me

I'm going to object to the

hearsay.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8
9

The wine store at

We'll take it for what it's

worth.
MR. EVANS:

-- little business after 6:30 p.m.

11

on Friday evenings, and after 7:00 on Saturdays.

12

really don't understand what his business plan is if it

13

depends on pedestrian traffic.

14

very little need for him to stay open that late.

15

I

It seems to me there's

Now, let me add that if he were proposing a

16

wine store, which closed at 8:00 like the store at 1741

17

Davis Street, and instead of trying to operate sort of

18

anonymously without telling us anything about it, if he

19

had come to us and discussed it, which I would have

20

thought he would be interested in doing because we're

21

supposed to be his customers, I would have no objections

22

to this store.

23
24

Okay, that's all I have to say.

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

Do you have any

questions for Mr. Evans?

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES

(630) 894-9389

119
10/7/08

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Just one.

Mr. Evans, the

2

comparable that you eluded to, that's west of the

3

tracks, isn't that?

4
5

MR. EVANS:

I was talking about the wine store

at 1741 --

6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

7

MR. EVANS:

8

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9
10

1741 Sherman?

Sherman.
Is that the Wine Style

store?
MR. EVANS:

The liquor store west of the

11

tracks has hours comparable to what you're suggesting.

12

I haven't looked recently, but I believe they're

13

comparable to what you're suggesting.

14

It also has a parking lot, by the way, so

15

somebody who's driving there after hours is more likely

16

to go there than to your store, except if they're

17

interested in getting fine wines.

18

doubts that they'd be interested in doing that at 11:00

19

on a Saturday night.

20

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

But I really have

Might it be possible, sir,

21

that there might be two different markets for, for fine

22

wines at this, in this area of the City of Evanston?

23
24

MR. EVANS:

Well, my understanding from the

operator of 1741 Davis Street is that there really isn't
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1

enough demand for two stores of the same kind.

2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

3

MR. EVANS:

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

Of course, he --

You can talk to her about it.
They might have a bit of a

prejudice, I would think, about someone opening --

6

MR. EVANS:

Well, it seems to me if there were

7

a market for it she would be open for longer hours.

8

doesn't open until 11:00.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

9

11

Thank you very much, sir.

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

She

Okay, thank you.

Anyone

else?
MR. McMAHON:

12

Good evening, my name is James

13

McMahon, I'm at 1580 Sherman, Unit 804.

14

dispel the term, fine wine, in the price point mentioned

15

at $8.

16

an inexpensive bottle of wine, that's not fine wine, you

17

could call this mid-grade wine.

18

I heard eight to $20.

And I'd like to

An $8 bottle of wine is

We also haven't been told what percentage of

19

sales are going to occur in this price range.

You can

20

have wine for sale from $8 to $800, but if you sell 99

21

percent of the wine at $8 a bottle, that's not a fine

22

wine store.

23

Beer will be sold here, we haven't been told

24

what percentage of the sales of the store are expected
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1

to be beer.

2

million in unused retail potential going untapped.

3

the Wine Styles store two blocks away is mostly empty

4

when I walk by.

5

area are never crowded.

6

that potential is left untapped.

7

The, we've been told that there's $10
But

The other three liquor stores in the
So there's some reason that

The, Mr. Abel came before us with a impressive

8

resume, and that lent weight to the words that he had

9

for us and the study he conducted here.

But there's a,

10

much of what he had to say was beyond my ability to

11

judge, but the things that the did say that I could

12

judge, there was a pattern of errors that I think speaks

13

to, I'm trying to think of a way to say it, that maybe

14

the value of his study in this case is not impressive.

15

His store lineup was inaccurate, that's been

16

addressed already.

17

Julius in our building, the store next to the proposed

18

site is a hairdresser, that's been mentioned before.

19

mentioned that it's a seven-story condo building.

20

resident of the eight floor that's extremely worrisome.

21

There's no store like an Orange

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

He

As a

I would just like to

22

point out that SPARC seems to think you live in a seven-

23

story building as well.

24

Evanston to recognize you.

So you might as the City of
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2
3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

I think that was based on

the testimony though and not any measurements.
MR. McMAHON:

His research turned up the

4

existence of three liquor stores when there are four

5

points of sale for liquor, he was unaware of one of them

6

completely, and he only bothered to visit two of them.

7

He mentioned that the proposed store would be

8

unable to sell inexpensive beer because of the high

9

operating cost and the expensive purchasing the site.

10

But of course you can sell inexpensive beer if you have

11

enough volume of sales.

12

sales that are one of my biggest worry.

13

And it's those very volume of

Mr. Ryan's study didn't find a liquor store in

14

a condo building to include in his study.

15

just, I think, invalidating his study with not enough

16

pertinent data, I think the fact that there is no liquor

17

store in a condominium building that he could find is a

18

telling fact in itself.

19

More than

And if I may, to the attorney, I beg your

20

pardon, sir, I don't know your name.

21

condo board, the head of the condo board for Optima

22

Towers doesn't need an individual mandate to come before

23

you and speak on our behalf, that's why she was elected,

24

we gave her that mandate when we elected her to the
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position, she often speaks for the building in

2

addressing vendors and outside entities.

3
4

Thank you for letting me speak before you
tonight.

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Just a second, Mr. McMahon.

6

Do you have any questions for him?

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Just one.

The market

8

analysis by Goodman Williams, do you know who

9

commissioned that market analysis?
MR. McMAHON:

10
11

to tell me that it's the City of Evanston.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

12
13

I would infer that you are going

testimony.

I think that was the

Thank you very much.

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Thank you.

15

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

16

you familiar with Wine Spectator Magazine?

17

MR. McMAHON:

18

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

I have a question.

Are

Yes.
Would you say that they

19

are in the habit of grading mid-wines to low-end wines

20

or fine wines?
MR. McMAHON:

21
22
23
24

I believe that they run the

gamut.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Okay.

So I was just

curious, because they came out with a, the issue this
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1

month has a hundred bottles under $15, and they tend to

2

rate wines based on taste not on price.

3

MR. McMAHON:

Yes, you can find nice, a nice

4

bottle of wine for under $15, but if you go to a fine

5

wine tasting you're not going to find those wines there.

6

There's a market for them, but those aren't fine wines.

7

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

8

MR. McMAHON:

9

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:
MR. McMAHON:

10

In your opinion.

Well, certainly in my opinion.
Okay.

But my opinion was, is based on

11

something.

I've had wine as a hobby for many years, and

12

have gone to wine classes, wine tastings, Schaeffer's

13

Wines and Spirits, House of Glunz, Sam's, a number of

14

other sources.
So, yeah, wine was a hobby, and unfortunately,

15
16

I have to pay for my own.

17

with some wines I'm familiar with some price points.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

18
19

So besides being familiar

for Mr. McMahon?

MR. McMAHON:

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

23
24

Any other questions

All right, thank you, sir.

20

22

Okay.

Thanks again.
Anyone else?

Yes?

That's

all right.
MS. HOFF:

Hi, I'm Karen Hoff, and I live on

the top floor.
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CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

2

MS. HOFF:

1580?

1580 Sherman Avenue, Evanston,

3

Illinois, yes.

4

you saw, the picture of the trucks and whether this

5

store would add more or not.

6

11:00, they park, and I know there's two parking spaces

7

reserved for them, but everybody uses everybody else’s.

8

And strangers come in and park there and we get to tow

9
10

them away.

And my primary concern is safety.

As

But if they're open until

We have to go to the garage door, and it

opens.
Now, there's people there buying stuff at

11
12

11:00, I'm coming in by myself.

They can come in right

13

through that garage door, sometimes I wait for it to

14

close to see if someone's ducking through.

15

my condo was burglarized, and it's a really spooky

16

thing.

17

a lot more safety measures.

By the way,

Somebody did get into the building and we've got

But if this store's opened until 11:00, people

18
19

coming in for cigarettes, and beer, and wine, and

20

whatnot.

21

the street.

22

you know they're going to jay walk.

23

seen more jay walkers on the whole planet than in

24

Evanston, Illinois.

And there's a convenience store right across
And people, if they park across the street
I mean, I've never

And they're going to be running
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1

across the street because I've done it myself.

2

there's that safety, there's the, you know, building

3

safety, there's possibly a noise factor.

4

And then my question is, I thought street

5

parking ended at 9:00.

6

park then?

7

much, sorry.

Where are these people going to

That's all I have to say.

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8
9

MS. HOFF:

11

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

MS. HOFF:

14

to sell cigarettes?

I'm just guessing.

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

MS. HOFF:

21

Are you going

Yes?

No.
How's he going to make money?

I mean, doesn't sell cigarettes and booze?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

18

20

Just to, you've indicated

Are you --

15

19

Do you have any questions

Thank you.

the sale of cigarettes.

13

17

Thank you very

for --

10

12

But, so

I'm sorry, I'm sorry, I'm

sorry.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

So he's going to

sell cigarettes?

22

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

23

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Cigarettes, yes.
How about cigars?
Yes.
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CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

2

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

5

Cigarettes, cigars?
Yes.
Okay.
You said you were

burglarized?

6

MS. HOFF:

Yeah.

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

MS. HOFF:

9

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

When was that?

Two years ago.

10

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

11

MR. HORNTHAL:

Thank you.
Anyone else?

Yes, sir.

Again, David Hornthal, 1580

12

Sherman, I'll keep mine brief.

13

congestion as well as the safety, as my fellow unit

14

owners have already emphasized.

15

from a business plan and business strategy standpoint.

16

My concern is with the

But my concern is more

We've heard repeatedly that the target market

17

is mostly business workers who are going to pick up with

18

wine on their way home.

19

counter-intuitive to staying open until 10:00 p.m. on

20

any weekday or even being open period on the weekend.

21

If you look around the Chicago Loop, that is the

22

business area, everything is closed after 7:00 p.m. and

23

most of the weekend.

24

90 percent foot traffic is very

I've just find a lot of inconsistencies in
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1

what their business strategy is and their business plan.

2

I would like to see their business plan, what sort of

3

market research has been done to actually show who the

4

target market is.

5

lived here, that's part of why I moved here.

6

not be one of the clientele, yet they seem to think that

7

I would be the target market.

8

concerns about their business plan, that it's going to

9

lead to congestion and safety for all of our unit

10
11
12
13

I used to work in Evanston before I
I would

So I just have a lot of

owners.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Thank you.

Any questions

for this witness?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Just one.

Were you here,

14

sir, when Mr. Abel testified that there are 8,000

15

residents within the area in question?

16

MR. HORNTHAL:

I was.

But he also did not

17

indicate that that was as much of the target market as

18

it was the business dwellers.

19

bottle of wine on their way home for the evening.

20

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22
23
24

Anyone else?

I quote, picking up a

Thank you.
All right, thank you, sir.

Yes?

MS. FABIRSZAK:

I just have one question that

I didn't finish before.
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CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

2

MS. FABIRSZAK:

3

at 1580 Sherman Avenue in Unit 804.

And you are again?

I am Ursula Fabirszak, I live

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

5

MS. FABIRSZAK:

All right.

So my question, to finish my

6

question, you mentioned $580,000 to purchase the place,

7

$90,000 to do the rehab, $50,000 in, I think you said

8

initial inventory.
My question is, what kind of research did you

9
10

do, who did you consult in the City of Evanston, what

11

permits did you get before making that investment?

12

Because I think quoting the fact that you have spent

13

that money, it's a game that you play to, I don't know,

14

for us to feel sorry for you, that's something.

15

When I, before I purchased my condominium I

16

did all the research in the world to make sure it was

17

the right investment.

So that's my question.

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

18

The answer is, we purchased

19

the property knowing that we would need to obtain a

20

license.

21

introduction of a 1,500 square foot fine wine

22

establishment at this location is, is imminently

23

appropriate.

24

investment, and that we were willing to assume the risk.

At the risk of sounding simplistic, the

And we felt that the, that it was a good
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The question that I have for you is, when you

2

bought this condominium and you did all this research

3

were there commercial units on the first level when you

4

bought this unit after you did all this research?

5
6

MS. FABIRSZAK:

I knew that there would be,

but at the time nobody had moved in yet.

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

MS. BERNSTEIN:

10

Thank you.

Anyone else?

Can I make a comment and not a

question?
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

11
12

Okay, thank you.

comment.

Yes, you may make a

Come on up.

13

MS. BERNSTEIN:

I was at --

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15

MS. BERNSTEIN:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

MS. BERNSTEIN:

And you are?

Shellie Bernstein, Unit 503 -All right.

-- 1580.

I was at your other

18

establishment kitty corner from Venison's, the something

19

pantry.

20

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

21

MS. BERNSTEIN:

22

Davis Pantry.

Thank you.

The Davis Pantry.

And many things were stacked up very high to the

23

ceilings, and I also got hurt there one day.

24

so small and everything was packed in that I walked into
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something and I hurt my foot.

2

happen here because of the lack of space?

3

thought.

4

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Now, is this going to
Just a

I'm sorry for your injury,

5

but as you can see the layout that has been presented we

6

clearly have significant open space, and the crowding

7

will not occur.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

8
9
10
11

All right, thank you.

Any

other questions or comments by neighboring property
owners?

Yes, I see one, come on up.
MS. YEA:

You are?

My name is Lois Yea, and I'm at 807

12

Davis and Sherman Plaza.

13

get up and say something only because apparently I'm the

14

only one that doesn't live at 1580 Sherman.

15

do not represent Sherman Plaza.

16

I feel a little compelled to

And no, I

But I did want to say that as a neighbor I

17

have some of the very same concerns, and I would also

18

object to having this type of business in the

19

neighborhood.

20

more people from Sherman Plaza had they actually read

21

the notice and read all the way down to the end where it

22

said, convenience store with liquor sales.

23

than that they probably were just unaware of perhaps

24

some of the implications.

I would guess that, you know, might be
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2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:
for her?

3

All right.

Thank you.

Anyone else?

MR. ARGUMEDO:

Any questions

I beg your pardon?

Yes, I don't, I'm not

4

testifying one way or the other, I just want to say,

5

very quickly, I just came to Evanston in June, I'm very

6

much, I'm still learning the process, I have very much

7

enjoyed working with the citizens and the business

8

people, and I've just been given the ZBA process in, in

9

August, of everything like that.
And I just wanted to let the ZBA members, as

10
11

I'm learning about this process, I think from here on

12

out I'll definitely facilitate meetings, community

13

meetings.

14

facilitate communication in, between businesses and the

15

community, and everything like that.

16

One of the things I was hired to do is to

And I think this would have been a prime

17

example, this is the first special use that came through

18

that I was overseeing, I was not aware of all the

19

discussions that would be taking place.

20

special uses go through from the future to facilitate

21

the great communication I've seen in Evanston, I'll be

22

trying to encourage businesses to do that, I failed to

23

do that on this occasion.

But I think something I

24

definitely recognize now.

I just wanted to state that.
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CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right, thank you.

I

2

will say, Dominick, that this is a, even for a special

3

use, a little bit unusual.

4

All right.

So don't feel too bad, okay.

Any other property owners who wish to make

5

a statement or ask questions?

6

right.

7

then we will have the applicant sum up.

10

So will close that aspect of our hearing and

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

8
9

Going once, twice, all

I actually had

questions, I don't know if you want me to ask them first
or have him sum up?

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Questions of whom?

12

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

13

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Of the applicant.

Well, Board Member Summers

14

has some questions for the applicants, so let's take

15

those.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

16

Sorry I kind of missed

17

a couple of these before.

18

would be one or two deliveries per week to the, to the

19

store.

20

The testimony was that there

My understanding is that a lot of these liquor

21

companies have their own individual trucks, it's not

22

like, it's not like necessarily, you know, all of this

23

goes to one warehouse here in Chicago, and they take

24

your order, and pick out all your different bottles and
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1

brands and put it into one truck.

2

their own delivery systems.

3

They kind of have

Have you, what sort or research have you done,

4

or what sort of plans have you made that you think it

5

will be able to be combined into one or two deliveries

6

per week?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

7

The purchases will come from

8

a wholesaling entity, and will be delivered in one or

9

two trucks.

What your, what you and I recognize as some

10

of these big trucks with lots of cases on them are

11

delivering essentially to the Jewel, the major outlets

12

where they have these huge volumes.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13
14

of a Pepsi truck there.

15

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

19

quality beer, yeah.

20

Miller's or the, and I'm --

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

You won't have Pepsi, but

Again, small amounts of

We're not talking about the

Does quality beer come in a

smaller truck?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

23
24

We won't have Pepsi.

you'll have beer, right?

18

22

But we did have a picture

-- I may be offending Miller

drinkers.

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES

(630) 894-9389

135
10/7/08

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

3

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

It does.

Pardon?
It does.

Most quality

4

beers that are made by micro-breweries are actually

5

carried by spirit distributors as opposed to the

6

individual beer companies.

7

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

8

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9
10

And the imports as well.
And what about the

cigarettes and cigar folks, how are they going to get
their stuff there?

11

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

It's the same wholesaler.

12

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

14

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Same wholesaler?
Generally speaking.
I understand, and I

15

don't know what the arrangement is with the City, but I

16

understand that the loading dock situation over at

17

Sherman Avenue actually ended up being a little bit

18

oversized because some, of some of the original tenants

19

expected for the building.

20

Did you pursue at all any opportunities to

21

make arrangements for truck to park within their loading

22

dock space?

23
24

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

You mean next door, or

across the street?
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COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

2

that's across the street there.

3

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

No.

In the big loading dock

We're talking about

4

relatively insignificant vehicles once or twice per

5

week.

6

not impact on the, the traffic flow, which by the way is

7

three lanes of traffic, parallel parking on our side,

8

perpendicular parking or angle parking rather on the

9

north side.

10

The introduction of these two vehicles will, will

So it won't be impacted at all by the

introduction of two trucks.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

11

There was some

12

testimony that, that new shelving has been installed.

13

If the council were to observe the space as it exists

14

right now would that be representative of the types of

15

finishes that would be in the space in the end?

16

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

No.

17

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

In the, I think this is

18

called Application for an Administrative Interpretation

19

Document.

20

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Yes, ma'am.

21

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

At the very end of that

22

document it says, it is expected that approximately 300

23

patrons will frequent the store, but it does not qualify

24

that in terms of a day, a week, a month, a year
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2
3

terminology.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

The average, according to

the client and Mr. Abel, would be about 150 per day.

4

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

5

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

6

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

150 per day?

Per day, yes, ma'am.
And my final question

7

at this time is that relating to the cigarette sales,

8

which we know are currently going on at the Davis Pantry

9

and have seen pictures and observed personally the signs

10

related to such, there, the testimony is that there

11

would be no signage related to products like that put

12

into the windows of the, of the shop.

13

renderings that have been provided to us show no display

14

of cigarettes, pricing, or anything of that nature.

15

And the

So I was wondering if you could elaborate on

16

exactly how that, how the sale of cigarettes would be a

17

major component of the, of the business without, at

18

least by the display that I'm seeing here, any way to

19

even know that you sell cigarettes?

20

MR. J. PIKARSKI:

Well, first of all, we have

21

pledged not to place any ads or any paraphernalia in the

22

front windows of the, of the proposed use.

23

cigarettes will be at, at the checkout area, and it

24

would be a point of purchase with really the people that
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want tobacco products will know they're there, and we

2

have no intention of causing people to come to our site

3

via advertising in the windows.

4

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

So would I be able to

5

understand from your testimony, this is a little bit of

6

a deferment so bear with me if it's not true, but that

7

there, you know, I wouldn't walk into this store next

8

year and see one of those things up behind the cash

9

register where the cigarettes are pocked up?
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

10

No, they would be

11

significantly more subdued and much more subtle, yes,

12

ma'am.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

13
14

That's all I

have for right now.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

15
16

Okay.

before we ask them to sum up?
MS. O'CONNOR:

17

Okay.

Any other questions

We have --

Winni O'Connor, 1580 Sherman.

18

I'm just wondering, by his own admission their attorney

19

did not know they were going to sell cigarettes, so how

20

was he able to speak to how it's going to be displayed

21

and it's going to be -CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22
Yes?

We take your point, thank

23

you.

I don't want to cut anybody off, but we're

24

getting near the end here, so please be brief.
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MS. SADDLER:

Okay.

I'm just questioning the,

2

the renderings that they have.

3

should be actual pieces of the type of furniture in, if

4

they get this special use, which I hope they don't, I

5

think it needs to be done, very, very, very tastefully.

6

I don't see that in these renderings, it's so-so, it's

7

not really nice.

8

that spot.

And we need something really nice in

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

All right.

And I think that there

Thank you.

I saw one more

10

hand.

So we'll close this again and ask

11

the, this time we really mean it, we'll ask the

12

applicant to sum up then.
MR. J. PIKARSKI:

13

Okay.

I know the hour's

14

late and I also am painfully aware that the Board is

15

volunteers and have spent a significant amount of their

16

private time in furtherance of community activity.

17

believe it or not I, I really endorse that and thank

18

you.

19

And

Essentially we're here because we are 1,540

20

square feet instead of 3,200 square feet.

21

3,200 square feet we would be a permitted use under the

22

Zoning Ordinances of the City of Evanston.

23

we are here because we are 1,500 square feet, and for

24

some reason the City has distinguished between 3,200, or
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3,200 and less than 3,200.

2

shown, by unimpeachable testimony, that we have met all

3

of the standards of the Zoning Ordinance for a special

4

use at this location.

5

I believe that we have

In summation, I believe that we will be a very

6

positive effect upon this community, both from a safety

7

program inasmuch as we will create traffic to this site.

8
9

And eyes on the street is a very, very important
ingredient in safety.
We will also be providing tax revenue.

10

Many

11

of the other uses that were, that could be introduced at

12

this site don't provide any taxes.
I think that we have shown that we have met

13
14

our burden, and we would respectfully a favorable

15

ruling.

16

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Thank you.

All right,

17

everyone having had an ample opportunity to state

18

whatever he or she has to say we will close the record.

19

I note that it is now 11:00, we normally try to finish

20

by 11:00, I will leave it to my colleagues whether they

21

want to put this to rest tonight.

22

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

23

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

24

preference.

Yes.

That would be my

So if we are to do that we need to take a
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two minute break and then reconvene at, in about two

2

minutes.

3

(Off the record.)

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

We're back on the record.

5

We've closed the record of our testimony, it's now our

6

time to deliberate.

7

standards one by one initially I think we will get a

8

general discussion to see where the Board Members are on

9

this.

Rather than start to look at the

10

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

12

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

13

Do you want to start?

Do you want to start, Matt?
Well, I suppose I can

start.

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

15

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

The problem that I have

16

with this is really only in one area, and that's in the

17

hours.

18

I think we can argue whether it's a

19

convenience store and all that sort of stuff, but I

20

really don't think we need to.

21

important as to what do we call this establishment

22

versus how does this establishment function in the

23

neighborhood.

24

function in the neighborhood quite well.

I don't think it's so

I know of establishments like this that
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I can not attest to the character of the

2

applicant as to whether he's going to perform as well or

3

not as well as other people I know who run similar

4

establishments.

That's kind of generally where I am.

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Lori?

6

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

I'm going to go with,

7

go with Matt and step it up with a couple of things that

8

I've touched based on already.

9

you'll be surprised by that.

So I don't think that

Obviously, we have all the points that, that

10
11

are basic points that we carry on on any special use.

12

think that the key in this special use, and I always try

13

to remember that, that some of these things, as long as

14

you're not really changing the use, and you, you know,

15

you sell it, or whatever, it carries with the property.

16

And so I have to, you know, consider all those things

17

too.

18

So I agree with Matt on the hours that given

19

the type of business I think that, I would recommend a

20

reduction in the proposed hours.

21

I

I would also recommend language that defines

22

this special use as being predominately of sales of

23

liquor so that it would not become just another 7-11 or

24

White Hen across the street.

Maybe something in the, I
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don't know, 75 percent range.

2

I also believe that it's important to, given

3

the, given the issues with not only the type of business

4

being proposed, but also the issues that are brought up

5

by going to such scale of quantity as kegs that are

6

available and that sort of thing are even, I'm going to

7

say the wrong thing, but do I mean pony keg when I say

8

the, you know.

9

exacerbate any concerns about cars double parking and

Those types of things would only

10

that sort of thing because you can't carry those across

11

the street into the garage.
So I want to implement, if this was approved,

12
13

a restriction on that sale.
And finally, I believe very strongly in the

14
15

applicant's statement that they would refrain from the

16

various extraneous signage that's been talked about

17

tonight.

18

etching or graphics.

19

I also am opposed to any extensive, you know,

I think that, I'm going to guess, just because

20

I know I've seen it on some of the other units in the

21

building, that, you know, name signage is part of the

22

sign package for that building.

23

letter name signage or something would, I think would be

24

appropriate to be visible at the street level as it is

So, you know, small
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a, if in compliance with the package that would be

2

currently approved for the building.

3

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

Yes.

I just, I wanted

4

to say what I've seen here tonight, if I'm seeing it

5

accurately is that there seems to be a lot of fear by

6

the neighbors that what is going to go in that space is

7

not what is being represented to us this evening by the

8

applicants.

9

It seemed to me that if applicants do in fact

10

go with what they're saying tonight, and have it

11

extremely tastefully done, fine wines liquor store that

12

that's not necessarily going to be something that is

13

going to be extremely upsetting.

14

of a dirty, unkempt, ticky-tacky convenience store that

15

has people upset.

16

It's more the vision

So I think, you know, if we can see that we're

17

meeting the standards here and then impose some, some

18

appropriate restrictions to, to make sure that the

19

applicant does in fact carry through with what he's

20

telling us here tonight then I think we might be able to

21

find a, a common ground that's going to hopefully

22

improve the neighborhood, provide a service that's

23

needed, and so on.

24

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, I share the concerns
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of the neighbors, I've been following this applicant, or

2

application through SPARC and here.

3

And the proposal, well, first of all, one of

4

my concerns is one that Ms. Summers mentioned, and that

5

is a special use according to the, our legal department

6

runs with the land.

7

for what's, what's denominated a fine wine and spirits

8

store, at some point we'll get into concerns, if this is

9

sold to another owner, into persistent arguments about

10

And so if we approve a special use

what, what that means.
Because as we have seen with this application

11
12

it's more from a wine and spirits only store selling

13

wine of $25 and up and premium spirits, to a store, and

14

we never did get a straight answer on whether it was $8

15

or $10 and up.

16

although it will be high-end beer and no kegs, but still

17

beer.

18

Then we added some beer along the way,

And one of the neighbors pointed out, and

19

correctly, that their representation that's part of the

20

application shows an entire wall of coolers of beer.

21

All wonderful beer to be sure, but still quite a bit of

22

beer in the mix.

23
24

Then we added some mixers and soft drinks, no
Coke, no Pepsi, but still more different material.
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then as neared the end of the evening we got cigarettes

2

and cigars.

3

So what started off a week ago as $25 and up

4

wine, premium spirits, with a little pate has morphed

5

into what looks to me more and more like your basic

6

ordinary convenience store that sells wine and liquors.

7

So I do have that concern.

8

I have a concern with the real estate study,

9

which I found, with all due respect, virtually useless

10

for our concerns here.

The marketing study wasn't

11

really very helpful.

12

we need five liquor stores in this, in this area instead

13

of the four that are here, and why the other four

14

locations that are, that are within a five minute walk

15

of this facility couldn't soak up all of that unused

16

demand.

We never did get an answer to why

So, and then I do think, although apparently

17
18

there's some disagreement among us, that the extra

19

delivery trucks do add a additional cumulative effect to

20

this area.

21

busy no matter what we do.

22

establishment with the wine, and beer, and mixers, and

23

cigars, and cigarettes adding a lot more traffic to what

24

is already a, a bad situation.

Granted it's a busy street, it's going to be
But I just see this kind of

And granted, it's a bad
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situation that was created by some people who are in the

2

past and who aren't here, but still I don't, I don't

3

think I want to contribute to that.

4

And again, I realize that this is, is a

5

commercial location, and there are other permitted uses

6

that, that could generate traffic.

7

permitted uses, and my colleagues have mentioned this,

8

not uses that would have people buying, buying liquor at

9

10:30, 11:00 at night on a Friday or a Saturday night.

But again, not

And I think the notion that the fine wine and

10
11

liquor crowd is going to be out at 10:30 on Saturday

12

night selecting an exquisite bottle of wine is, is to me

13

fanciful and not realistic.
So I guess I'm not as favorable as some of you

14
15
16

folks.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

I forgot to add one

17

more point.

A personal thought, which I don't know

18

that, I don't know that it's considered by the majority,

19

but I'm, given the concept of, you know, a fine wine

20

spirit type of establishment, I can see, you know, I can

21

see several boxes of kind of cigars that go along with

22

that maybe, you know, being relevant.

23

have a concern about extensive sale of other tobacco

24

products, a lot of, you know, commercial cigarette
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products and that sort of thing, that I think the

2

council should also consider.

3

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

So, I think we have a sense

4

of where we're going.

5

a recommendation to the council based upon the standards

6

that are in the ordinance, we need to walk through the

7

standards at this point.

8

We do need, because we're making

The first standards is that the requested

9

special use is one of the standards, or one of, excuse

10

me, one of the special uses specifically listed in the

11

Zoning Ordinance.

12

special use permitted in this D3 Downtown District under

13

Section 6-11-4-3.

14

And that convenience store is a

So that particular standard is met.

The requested special use, excuse me, the

15

second standard is that the requested special use is in

16

keeping with the purposes and policies of the

17

Comprehensive General Plan and the Zoning Ordinance.

18

heard a lot of differing testimony about this.

19

We

I do believe, however, that as a convenience

20

store, whether it is selling fine wines and liquors or a

21

general convenience store of the 7-11 type, that this is

22

the kind of special use that is comprehended in this

23

area with the, under the Comprehensive General Plan and

24

the Zoning Ordinance.
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2

So do we have a consensus that that standard
is met?

3

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Agree.

4

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Yes.

5

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Agreed.

Number three, the requested

7

special use will not cause a negative cumulative effect

8

when its effect is considered in conjunction with the

9

cumulative effect of various special uses of all type on

10

the immediate neighborhood, and the effect of the

11

proposed type of special use upon the City as a whole.
I suspect this is where we have the most

12
13

disagreement.

14

facts and the testimony of the neighbors that this

15

proposed store in its most likely form will cause a

16

negative cumulative effect in this particular area.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

17
18

I'm persuaded by my own review of the

I fully disagree with

you.

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

20

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

This is a downtown

21

business district.

Anything that goes in there will

22

have delivery trucks.

23

testimony tonight that dealt with policing issues, which

24

really are not under our jurisdiction whatsoever.

I felt that we heard a lot of

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES

If

(630) 894-9389

150
10/7/08

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

people are double parked, are parked illegally you call

2

the police.

3

people on your property that should not be on your

4

property you call the police.

5

If there's safety concern issues about

I don't think any of that bears any weight in

6

a cumulative negative effect of this particular

7

establishment.

8

is a convenience store is going to add any additional

9

undue stress on this neighborhood than any other type of

And I don't think that just because this

10

retail establishment going into that location.

11

quite evident that they intended this to be retail

12

commercial location.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

13

And it's

And I'm going to sit

14

somewhere in between and say that taken at face value I

15

do think that this, that this proposal and plan would

16

have a negative cumulative effect.

17

strict parameters that could be put on the business I

18

think that technically it could, it, with those

19

parameters it could take away that negative cumulative

20

effect.

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

But given, given

Beth?
I'm pretty sure that I

23

agree with what Lori just said, sorry.

24

I agree with Matt absolutely that any commercial

LeGRAND REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES

Yes, I, actually

(630) 894-9389

151
10/7/08

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
812 Davis Street

1

enterprise in that space is going to have some sort of

2

effect, which could be construed as negative, as far as

3

delivery trucks, possible hours of business, customers

4

in and out.

5

And unfortunately, if you do choose to live in

6

a downtown high-rise condo you're going to probably run

7

into things like that.

8

we need to do is to make sure that, that if we recommend

9

granting the special use that we try to define

So I think what, you know, what

10

appropriate parameters that will, you know, lessen

11

those, make them as bearable as possible.

12

mind that it is a commercial space, and, you know, we

13

have effects from that.

14

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Keeping in

I guess this is what

15

happens when you try to serve two masters with the same

16

building, just a random thought.

17

commercial and a residential building in the same space

18

leads to conflicting goals.

19

All right.

But having a

I think we have, on a straw vote

20

here, that with appropriate conditions three of you

21

believe that the standard has been met.

22

namely me, does not.

23
24

And one of us,

So then we move on then to the fourth
standard, which is the requested special use does not
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interfere with or diminish the value of property in the

2

neighborhood.

3

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Again, I would go to

4

the statement I had for the last item.

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

I'm persuaded that

6

it would interfere with or diminish the value of, of the

7

property.

8

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

9

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

By what means?

Well, I think the nature of

10

this business, and again, I'm fully aware that this is a

11

commercial space and there are permitted commercial

12

uses.

13

this space would have a negative effect and diminish the

14

value of that building and the units above it.

But I think this particular proposal in this, in

15

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

Meaning the 103 units that

are listed here.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

18
19

Moreso --

Moreso than a fast

foods sub-franchise would?
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

20

Actually, I do believe

21

that.

I believe that this would have a more serious

22

impact than say a Subway or a Quizno's, although there

23

seems to be a Subway on every corner.

24

won't, wouldn't go there.

So maybe that

But again, depending on the
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type of fast food restaurant I would say yes.

2
3

But do we have the same breakdown, three to
one?

4

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes.

All right.

The fifth

6

standard is the requested special use can be adequately

7

served by public facilities and services.
I'm sensing that there's a consensus that that

8
9

standard has been met?
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

10

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

11

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

12

Yes.

Yes.
Okay.

The sixth is that

13

the requested special use does not cause undue traffic

14

congestion.
And again, I sense that three of you believe

15
16

that it would not?
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

17
18

Again, going back to my

statements for three and four.

19

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

With appropriate --

20

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

I think you have to use

21

discretion as to what does undue traffic congestion

22

mean.

23

going to be traffic, things will happen.

24

that this, this particular establishment is going to

You're in a downtown business district, there is
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cause any greater problem than any other establishment

2

going into the space would.

3

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Agreed.

I'm afraid I disagree.

5

right, Number 7, the requested special use preserves

6

significant historical and architectural resources.
I don't think that that's really relevant, the

7
8

All

building is the building, and -COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

9

I think it is somewhat

10

relevant within the, within the context of the

11

commitment to, to the free glass area that would, you

12

know, face the street.

13

up with various types of advertising I think, you know,

14

would diminish the value of the architecture of that

15

building.

16

think, again --

17
18

To take that glass and fill it

So but with that, with that provision, I

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, then I think we would

have a consensus then, right?

19

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

20

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

21
22

about that one.

Yes.

I'm not going to fight

Okay.

Number 8, the requested special use preserves

23

significant natural and environmental features.

24

sure that this is, this is relevant.
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And Number 9, the requested special use

2

complies with all other applicable regulations of the

3

district in which it is located in other applicable

4

ordinances except to the extent such regulations have

5

been modified through the planned development process,

6

the grant of a variation.

7

This is something that Ms. Summers eluded to

8

earlier, and we would expect that if this special use is

9

granted that it would indeed comply with all other

10

applicable regulations.

11

understands that the zoning process does not have

12

anything to do with liquor licenses, and that's another

13

license or permit in and of itself that is handled by a

14

different branch of the City.

15

believe that standard has been met.

16
17
18
19

And, of course, the applicant

So with that caveat I

So, does someone have a motion that lists the
conditions that you would attach to a recommendation?
COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:
conditions we're going to attach?

20

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22
23
24

Are we agreed on the

conditions.

Well --

Let's talk about

One was hours.

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Well, why doesn't she

propose what she has, and then we can discuss before we
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vote.

2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All right.

3

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

I think the, I think

4

the list of things that I, obviously, the council can go

5

to our individual statements, but I think the list of

6

things that will derive the, the greatest amount of

7

consensus between us is as follows:

8
9

Our usual, a requirement that development be
in substantial compliance with the applicable

10

legislation and the testimony and representations that

11

have been made here before us tonight, as well as within

12

the documents in the file in the case.

13

That the applicant comply with the Litter

14

Collection Plan, the Parking Plan, as well as the

15

amendments that have been presented to us that employees

16

would park in the Sherman Plaza parking garage across

17

the street.

18

garbage, with the Garbage Pickup Plan.

19

And that the applicant comply with the

In addition to that, I believe that we should

20

clarify the, that this special use is granted for a

21

convenience store which would be primarily for the

22

purpose of the sale of various forms of liquor to which

23

more than 75 percent of the sales of that establishment

24

would be, would be from liquor.
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1

That no, that no kegs or pony kegs of any form

2

would be sold from this establishment.

That the hours

3

for the establishment specifically related to closing

4

time would be pulled back to 8:00 on weekdays.

5

would be, let's call that Sunday through Thursday.

6

9:00 p.m. on Friday and Saturday.

So that
And

That no signage as represented by the

7
8

applicant and further discussed here on this Board be

9

allowed within the, within the glass storefront, either

10

directly applied or, you know, hung closely there behind

11

so as to be intentionally for the, for the storefront,

12

be provided that has extraneous information about the

13

images, taxed sale, anything of that, pretty much

14

anything of that nature I think is our agreement.
And that additionally, no etching or other

15
16

graphics be applied to the glass.

17

any information on the glass be restricted to the

18

applicable information for the business, such as the

19

business name, hours of operation, that are standard for

20

applied signage as part of that signage package for that

21

building.

22
23
24

That the glass, that

Did I cover everything?
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

What about deliveries?

They said they were only going to need two -COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Deliveries would be
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1

restricted --

2

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

3

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

4

10 minutes.
-- to two per week

after 10:00 a.m. and before --

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

6

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

Before 4:00.

7

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

I don't think we can

8

say that it's going to be two deliveries.

9

for sure that it is going to be two deliveries.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

Before 4:00.

We don't know

Well, I can't count the

11

number of times that they told us they would only need

12

two deliveries.

13

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

14

banner week and they run out of something?

15

we, are we restricting them from refilling their stock?

16

What if they have a
I mean, are

I mean --

17

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, that's my point.

18

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

19

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

Right.
The building made no,

20

no accommodation for a loading zone.

This business

21

should not be penalized for that.

22

that the residents themselves can't get packages, that a

23

truck has to park on the street or in a parking space on

24

the Sherman side.

We've had testimony
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1

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

So you want to leave

2

that out of the motion and have that be carried over by

3

our discussion that you and I think that would be a good

4

idea?

5
6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Yes, I guess the council

will ultimately decide that.

7

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

8

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

9

See it all.

But I would certainly think

given all of the, the numerous representations about two

10

deliveries a week that were made to SPARC and again to

11

us that that's the way it should be.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

12

And if they --

And we've never had a

13

business come before us before and promise that they're

14

only going to get two deliveries, and we go out and

15

monitor that they're only going to get two deliveries a

16

week.

17

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, that's part of my

18

problem, Matt.

19

representation, these folks have and they say that's one

20

reason why we should vote for this.

21

to take them at their word.

22

I mean, nobody else has made that

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

So if, I just want

I'm taking them at the

23

word that it would not add undue congestion to the

24

neighborhood.

And to say that they are only going to
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1

have two deliveries, I don't think you can hold any

2

business to a limited number of deliveries in a week,

3

especially when that business is not up and operating

4

yet.

5

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Well, that's one of the

6

reasons I don't want to approve it, because we don't, we

7

don't know what we're approving.

8

they can have two deliveries they can have 20.
COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

9

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10
11

That's right.

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

And I'm sure we'll take

Okay, well.

Is there a

motion?
COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

16

I'm inclined to say

17

let's leave the delivery requirement out.

18

mind.

19

But again,

pictures of them if there are more than two deliveries.

14
15

They could one.

we don't know.

12
13

I mean, you know, if

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

I, if, never

With that, I guess

20

I'll, the testimony from, or the thoughts of Mr. Creamer

21

and I are on the record, so I'll leave that out of the

22

motion but that can be for their consideration

23

separately.

24

But given that, I believe what we are going to
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1

do is make a recommendation for approval given the

2

outline of conditions, which I'm sorry Dominick for my

3

rambling style, that I previous, I just went through.

4

I'm not doing it again.

5
6

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Okay.

Well, they're on the

record, right?
MR. ARGUMEDO:

7

They are on the record, they

8

are on the transcript, and beyond my scribbled notes.

9

And so we have them for the condition, and they'll be

10

presented to the City Council.

11

misrepresentation of that I'm sure those would be called

12

to attention.

13

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

14

MR. ARGUMEDO:

If there's any

Okay.

So --

Do you want me to just go

15

through again so, what we have?

We have the conditions

16

would be a Litter Collection Plan, a Parking Plan that

17

states employees would not be using the two spaces

18

designated for that business, the Garbage Plan, that

19

this would be a convenience store which derives 75

20

percent of its, of the establishment from liquor sales

21

with no sale kegs, no sale of pony kegs.

22

would be, end at, Sunday through Thursday they would end

23

at 8:00, and Friday through Saturday they would end at

24

9:00.
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1
2

Was there a motion to state what time it would
open?

3
4

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:
what --

5
6

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

They asked for 10:00

and 11:00 on Saturdays.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

7
8

I believe they requested,

I have notes that say

9:00 on everyday except for Sunday, which was 11:00.
COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

9
10

11:00 on Sundays.

11

10:00.

You had 9:00?

MR. ARGUMEDO:

12
13

state law.

14

before 11:00.

That's what I meant,
I thought it was

That 11:00 by Sunday is by

Can't open at, that store can not open
I'm not sure --

15

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

16

MR. ARGUMEDO:

17

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

On a Sunday?

On a Sunday.
But on other days our

18

representation here, that I have at least, noted is

19

9:00.

20

okay?

Is there any clarification to that or is that

21

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

22

MR. ARGUMEDO:

23

clarification on those.

24

Let me see, in the --

Just wondering if there was

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

In the staff report it says
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1

9:00.

2

COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

I could actually be on

3

board with limiting opening hours.

4

establishment is truly being intentioned as a fine wine

5

and spirit store I see no reason to open at 9:00 if

6

opening at 10:00 would help everyone feel a little bit

7

better about it on the board.
COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

8
9

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

13

some times in there.

14

tonight --

Well, I think we should put

They represented to SPARC and here

15

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

16

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

17

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

19
20

Except for Sunday which

would be 11:00.
CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

Except for Sunday which

would be 11:00.
COMMISSIONER McLENNAN:

22

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

24

9:00.

-- it was 9:00.

21

23

I have no problem with

opening times.

12

18

I'm okay with the 9:00

representation.

10
11

I mean, if this

11:00.
Okay.

So that'll be

the recommendation.
MR. ARGUMEDO:

And then the final one is no
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1

signage within the glass, just the information that's

2

pertinent to the store, the name of the store and hours.

3
4

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:
either on or immediately behind.

5
6

MR. ARGUMEDO:

That's what I had and that's

what the record will show.

7
8

Yes, and the signage

COMMISSIONER SUMMERS:

All right.

That's my

COMMISSIONER RODGERS:

I second your motion.

motion.

9

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

10

It's been moved and

11

seconded to recommend approval to the council subject to

12

the conditions that have been outlined, and will be

13

fully explained in the transcript and then transcribed

14

by Dominick.
Any further discussion?

15
16

say aye.
(Chorus of ayes.)

17
18

All those in favor

CHAIRMAN CREAMER:

All those opposed?

19

Three ayes, one no.

20

the council.

21

participation and their patience.

No.

That recommendation will be sent to

I want to thank everyone for their
And we are adjourned.

22

(Whereupon, the hearing in the

23

above-entitled cause was

24

concluded at 11:42 p.m.)
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